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Saritha Shetty

From: Corinna Tessendorf <Corinna@urbanedgeplanning.co.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 7 December 2023 11:54 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc: Tim Lidgard; Karen Williams; James Beban
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Submission on the HCC Draft District Plan - Seaview Marina
Attachments: HCC DDP - Seaview Marina - Submission.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Kia ora, 
 
Please find aƩached a submission on the DraŌ District Plan by Urban Edge Planning on behalf of Seaview Marina Ltd. 
Please feel free to contact me with any queries. 
 
Kind Regards, 
 
Corinna Tessendorf 
Principal Policy Planner 
022 304 4187 
corinna@uep.co.nz 
 

 
Bouverie Business Centre (BBC) 
Suite 1B, 5 Bouverie Street, Petone 
PO Box 39071, Wellington Mail Centre, Lower HuƩ 5045 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Thursday, 14 December 2023 4:00 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc: Sean Bellamy
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Feedback on Draft District Plan Flood Hazard Assessment
Attachments: Council Letter (page 1).pdf; Council Letter (page 2).pdf; - flood hazard 

overlay.pdf; Wigley & Roberts Site Plan (part).pdf; Council Stormwater Plan (part).pdf; Cuttriss 
Letters (2 of).pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Sean

We recently received a letter from Council notifying us that our property at   is 
classified in the Draft District Plan as being in a ‘High Hazard Area’.  Subsequent enquiry to Council’s 
helpline confirmed the assessment was based on a generalised computer model that shows our 
property to be in the ‘inundation zone’ for the neighbouring creek in a 100 year flood event.  
   
After recent climate events in New Zealand, we understand and support the need for councils to re‐
assess risks of natural hazards in District Plans.  The letter from Council states that “the implication 
of being within a High Hazard Area is that resource consent may be required for new activities”.  This 
statement ignores the fact that such risk designations are already affecting owners’ ability to obtain 
insurance, mortgages, or sell properties.  Therefore the implications of such high hazard ratings are 
much more serious than acknowledged.  So Council assessments must be as accurate as possible 
and provide clarity for at‐risk property owners on future implications and courses of action.   
   
This email provides feedback on the Draft District Plan questioning the model used to assess flood 
risk.  We provide evidence that the resulting risk classification in our case is inaccurate, as follows.  
   

1. The neighbouring creek has a deep, wide bed shown on survey plans undertaken by Wigley 
& Roberts Surveyors in 2008 as approx. 6m below road level, with the area on our property 
shown in the Draft District Plan as ‘inundation zone’ also being up to 2m above road level; 

2. So if the area was inundated, surrounding properties not classed high risk would also be 
flooded; 

3. Information supplied to us by Cuttriss Consultants dated 12 March 2001 in conjunction with 
the joining of Cedar Street to Cyprus Drive – for which we were an affected party – stated 
that a 600mm culvert was deemed large enough to cater for a (then) 100 year storm event; 

4. We sought further assurance from Cuttriss Consultants and detail from Council at that time; 
5. Council storm water plan C11 supplied to us then shows the creek beside our property to be 

fed by two pipes ‐ one of 12” diameter, the other of 6” diameter; 
6. Our own current site inspection shows that there are in fact three pipes – two 

corresponding to the above with another not shown on your plan of approx. 150mm 
diameter; 

7. Either way, flow into the creek is restricted by the pipes feeding it, plus nearby overland 
runoff; 

8. The creek bed slopes downhill and widens beside our property with no restrictions on 
outflow; 

9. As a result of our correspondence at the time, we were subsequently advised by Cuttriss 
Consultants on 25 September 2001 that a decision had been taken at “considerable extra 
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cost” to construct a bridge over the gully, stating that the bridge option meant “no long 
term interference with the existing watercourse by culverting and associated earthworks”; 

10. The bridge built is still extant, allowing Cedar Street to cross the creek, with a span of 16m; 
11. Creek depth & width vary according to natural landforms ‐ indicative current on‐site 

measurements taken by laser distance meter yield the following cross‐sectional areas near 
to our property ground level:  

o At exit of pipes into creek = 24.333 m2 more or less 
o Adjacent to front corner of dwelling = 44.986 m2 more or less 
o Under bridge = 37.112 m2 more or less 

So in summary, our feedback challenges the accuracy to your risk assessment model in our case, 
which appears to be based solely on our property being adjacent to the creek bed, but without 
consideration of on‐site physical landforms and characteristics.  
   
We ask that the model and/or method of assessment for flood risk be reconsidered before the Draft 
District Plan is finalised, and for properties assessed as high risk, that the actual risk be verified by 
accurate on‐site assessments, given the potential implications for Council and owners.  
   
The following documents are attached to support the evidence provided above:  

 Letter received from Council advising of High Hazard Area rating (8 Nov 2023); 
 Flood overlay from Draft District Plan showing part of our property as ‘inundation zone’; 
 Relevant part of Wigley & Roberts survey of our property with elevations (Jan 2008); 
 Relevant part of Council storm water plan C11 feeding to creek (supplied to us 12 Apr 2001); 
 Letter from Cuttriss Consultants outlining proposal to culvert the creek (12 Mar 2001); 
 Letter from Cuttriss Consultants advising of decision to bridge the creek (25 Sep 2001); 

We are happy to meet with Council‐appointed surveyors for a site visit to verify relevant details and 
look forward to your response on this matter.  
   
Kind regards,  
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 29 November 2023 3:08 pm
To: District Plan Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Letter concerning district plan review
Attachments: letter to Hutt City Council Plan Change November 2023.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Nathan

Please find attached a letter concerning the district plan review. 
Kind regards  
 

 



Jo Miller  

Chief Executive 

Hutt city Council  

dpreview@huttcity.govt.nz 

 

Dear Jo Miller 

Your letter of 8 November 2023 advises that our property “may be affected by proposed changes in 

the Hutt City Council Draft District Plan”. 

We followed the links to the maps provided in your letter and found them inadequate to clearly 

identify the extent of our property that would be covered by the proposed “high or very high coastal 

natural character” zone.  The maps do not allow an accurate overlay of the “proposed zone” layer on 

the “property boundary” layer and we were unable to understand the extent of our property that 

would be affected.   

• Would you please provide us a clear and accurate delineation of the extent of our property 

that would be included in the proposed “high or very high 

coastal natural character” zone. 

The top of our property (the bit most likely to be affected by the proposed zone) is a narrow triangle 

with a row of 70-year-old pines down one boundary and a row of equivalent macrocarpas down the 

other, the narrow area between the boundary trees has a few emergent tree ferns as not much 

grows under the exotic trees.    The site is dominated by the two lines of large exotic conifers.  

Our property was inspected by the Hutt City Council ecologist appointed to work with landowners 

following the Council’s earlier attempts to identify Significant Natural Resource Areas (SNRAs) and I 

do not recall them identifying anything of ecological significance.    

• Please provide us a copy of the Hutt City Council ecologist’s ecological survey/report of our 

property that was carried out in response to the earlier SNRA discussions (possibly 2018 or 

2019?). 

We are not clear how the council is defining “high or very high coastal natural character” and how it 

has determined the proposed zone boundary which includes part of our property. 

• Please advise us of the criteria that are used to determine the “high or very high coastal 

natural character” zone and how/why our property meets these criteria. 

Our preference is that our property is not included in the proposed “high or very high coastal natural 

character” zone, as we can’t see any justification for its inclusion at this point.  Our outlook across 

the bay takes in significant developments approved by the Council in areas of far higher coastal 

natural character than our property provides. 

We are looking forward to receiving further information from you. 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 7:54 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc: Home Home
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Objections to planned changes to district plan
Attachments: HCC Letter 14th December 

Categories: Peter, LLRZ

To Hutt City Council  
   
Please find attached  documents outlining the objections from the owners of   to 
planned changes to the Draft HCC District plan relevant to:  
   
 
(a) The  proposed rezoning of our property to Large Lot Residential Zone; and  
   
(b) The proposed implementation of the High, Very High and Outstanding Coastal Character Areas.  
   
Please send a return email to the above address acknowledging receipt of this email  
   
   
   
   

  



Hutt City Council draft District Plan review 
submission form 

Emailed to district.plan@huttcity.govt.nz 

Our details 

Name:  

Postal address (including suburb)  

Phone/mobile Email:  

-We are making this submission: as individuals 

We would like to be heard in support of my submission in person – In time yes .  

If others make a similar submission, we will consider presenting a joint case with them at a 

hearing. Yes  

This is a submission on the Hutt City Council draft District Plan review. 

We will not gain an advantage in trade competition through this submission. 

We are the owners of the above property which is directly affected by the proposed changes to the 

District Plan with respect to the: 

(a) proposed rezoning of our property to Large Lot Residential Zone; and 

(b) by the proposed implementation of the High, Very High and Outstanding Coastal 

Character Areas. 

With respect to the specific provisions of the draft plan that our submission relates to: We 

oppose the proposed changes. 

  



Submission on the Draft Hutt City Council District Plan changes 
 

Submission by  

Date 14th December 2023 

INTRODUCTION 

We are the owners of  

GENERAL SUBMISSION POINTS 

1. The following comments apply to the draft District plan 

We consider that while the high-level aspirations of the proposed District plan are 

commendable, the Hutt City Council has gone too far in its Housing and Ecological policy 

changes which will severely impact the rights of private property owners.  

 

There is a lack of zoning consistency being applied across Eastbourne and the introduction 

of a new Large Lot zone is entirely inconsistent with Central Government’s National Policy 

Statement requiring Councils to develop rules and plans for greater intensification.  

 

The recent PC 56 outcome highlights the Council’s desire for increased intensification, yet 

despite this you are proposing a retrograde step by imposing new rules on a significant 

number of properties in Eastbourne without any mandate or justification. It is poor 

governance. 

 

Under PC56 our property is zoned for medium density residential. This changes effectively 

deprives us of the ability to optimise the development of our property should we choose to 

do so in the future.  

 

There is no cognisance of the future here, it seems the Hutt City Council are trying to fix 

something that isn’t broken. The future use of this property should not be penalised by HCC’s 

short- term vision for Hutt City. The bigger picture is how to optimise the use of the available 

residential land in Hutt City to respond to the increased migration to the region. 

 



There is a meaningful lack of detail across these new provisions on the real impact on 

property owners particularly as to any proposed controls and rules that may be added to the 

various policies, and any compensations payable by the Council. 

 

The forced introduction of SNA’s on private land  in the Bays was emphatically defeated in 

2018. The reasons why that was defeated still remain and nothing in this District plan review 

provides any more detail and rationale to support what is proposed on our or other 

properties in Eastbourne. 

 

2. Impacts of proposed changes to property ownership, value, and development 

opportunities 

The detailed comments on the two submission issues are noted below and indicate the level 

of refinement and matters that should be refined, should apply to these draft provisions. 

Some general matters include: 

 

• Lack of understanding & recognition of impact  

There is no mention of the dilution of property owner rights to achieve a proposed wider 

good.  

 

The rules as proposed will have a significant impact on current property values by removing 

opportunities for the future use of the property. Values are based on the highest and best 

use of a property and by changing the zoning and adding SNA controls HCC are reducing the 

highest and best use, and that constraint will reduce value and rates. 

If Hutt Council is determined to implement these changes, then it should front foot the issue 

of compensation for loss of value and rights. What is proposed is a “quasi” easement and 

anyone else requiring such an instrument across freehold property would pay compensation 

to obtain these rights. It says a lot about the City’s attitude to working with its ratepayers that 

there is no mention of this anywhere.  

• Counter productive 

The proposed rezoning and coastal area changes are counter-productive and will not lead to 

the environmental and social or housing outcomes required by Central Government. This is 

to promote development intensification to remove housing shortfalls, and landowners will 

not be able to pick up the additional cost burden of maintaining a SNA area.  

 

• Building controls  



The suggestion that a 1,000 sqm site should also allowed a “Granny flat” to compensate for 

the loss of existing development opportunity is embarrassing. Is this the extent of 

imagination or creativity provided by Hutt City Council to offset the loss of current 

development rights and property value. 

• Lack of detail as to the controls and obligations imposed on land owners 

We have previously questioned this matter.  

The imposition of a SNA suggests increased controls and obligations on the landowner. The 

lack of transparency on this issue remains a central issue. 

Landowners retain the risk and liability for the condition of their property. The ability to 

remove vegetation that poses a risk to the safety of the property occupants and neighbours 

must remain with the owner and the need to obtain consents to do so will increase that risk. 

The Council should not be involved unless the vegetation is a “tree of significance?” 

Land retention and earthworks are a necessity for hillside properties and the ability to act 

quickly could prevent a disaster is paramount. Owners must be able to respond without 

requiring consent and involving the Council. 

We have no issue with quarrying, mining and forestry being prohibited on our property as 

long as this prohibition applies to all adjoining landowners in this area including land owned 

by Iwi, local and central governments.  

 

3. Large Lot Residential Zone 

a. The proposed District plan maps indicate that most of the properties around  

are affected by this change. There is no evidence to support this change. The real 

drivers for this re-zoning need to be disclosed by Hutt City Council. Is there something the 

property owners need to be informed about? 

b. Please provide the evidence to support the 1,000sqm minimum lot size. What is the 

science behind this size? This seems to have been selected purely to ensure none of these 

properties can ever be subdivided, which is a luxury of choice we the landowners have 

always had in our 32 years of owning  Please produce the precedent 

information that says a large lot should be fixed at 1,000sqm and the background reports 

that support this decision in this location (character or ecological reports to validate your 

position).  



c. The letter we received from the Chief Executive 8th November 2023 says this relates to 

constraining more intensive development, such as steep slopes or a lack of infrastructure. 

There is no basis for establishing this minimum in this location. 

i. There is no basis to change the current plan, the rationale provided is 

spurious and lacks critical evidence, 

ii. The recent PC 56 decision and outcome does not reference or require this 

change,   

iii. The current Hutt City Council guidelines provide ample protection for Hutt City 

Council for hillside and medium density development. 

iv. What is proposed will limit all future subdivision for our and our neighbours 

properties, that is not a practical outcome to promoting residential 

development across Hutt City.  

v. There is no recorded or legislated special heritage or character value of these 

properties. They do not need protection, 

vi.  many of them are improved batches and villas but none have special status. 

vii. The usable life of the dwellings will expire at some stage and the properties 

will need to be redeveloped to meet the needs of the community. That long 

term forecast is that we need more houses rather than constraining the 

development. 

viii. There is plenty of precedence to show that hillside development (or more 

intensive development) can be undertaken within this area. New Zealand has 

some of the strictest building and engineering guidelines in the world and the 

Hutt City Council retains the oversight of any development work through the 

resource and building consenting processes. 

ix. There is no known lack of infrastructure available in Eastbourne. New houses 

are still being constructed and connected to the water supply, current storm, 

and sewer systems. Other infrastructure such as power and fibre are dealt 

with through other suppliers. Where is the evidence that there is a capacity 

issue with water supply, waste and stormwater systems that will prevent 

future residential development? 

i.  Please provide evidence that there is no plan to improve this 

infrastructure over time within the Hutt City Council asset planning. If 

the planning is not available, then the Council is not doing its job 

effectively.    

x. What is excluded from the letter mentioned in c. but referenced in the District 

plan zone definition is that the large lots are designed for the protection of 



ecological values. The reports issued by Wildfire in relation to the “suggested 

ecological values” were tested back in 2018. The Wildfire work lacked 

substance and accuracy. There is no evidence provided by Hutt City that this 

has changed, The evidence was refuted in 2018 and accepted by the then 

Council. 

xi. The issue of SNA’s has been raised by the Hutt City Council previously on 

private property affects our property  at and is covered in 

point 2 of our submission. What is clear is that Hutt City Council is using both 

this proposed rezoning and proposed changes to Coastal Character Areas 

rules to prevent our ability to deal in any way now or into the future with the 

balance of our property currently in vegetation. It is  nonsensical to suggest 

that the current vegetation has significant natural characteristics. We reject 

the notion that large lots should be determined by ecological values such as 

this. Candidly- there is no basis for this, and any trees of significance could 

easily be built around.     

xii. Our property is currently zoned Medium density Residential Zone, there are 

good examples in Eastbourne where properties on the hillside have been 

developed in an intensive and safe manner, we seek the ability to preserve 

the ability for our property at some in the future to be redeveloped and utilised 

effectively that could provide at least one other main dwelling as against the 

granny flat proposed.  In the past we have engaged Hutt based engineers and 

GNS scientists to assess our site for an additional property in preparation for 

development – if we so chose to develop accordingly. 

xiii. The site coverage seems to be still limited to 35% - while there may be some 

discretion to the Hutt Council to increase this, that is not an effective use of a 

1,000 sqm site and if the Hutt City persists with the rezoning the site coverage 

needs to be increased by right not at Council discretion to enable property 

owners to optimise the use of the 1,000 sqm area and derive the value lost by 

removing the medium density option. 

 

4. High, Very High and Outstanding Coastal Character Areas  

We have received a letter dated 8th November 2023 from Jo Miller, Chief Executive, 

relating to the possible implications to our property from the introduction of these areas.  



While the letter from Jo Miller is helpful, it states that consultation with affected parties 

is optional. We find this obtuse & dismissive, given the gravity of what is offered to our 

property.  

 

We, along with a substantial number of the Eastbourne Community, objected to the planned 

introductions of SNAs in 2018. The current proposal is the same matter  and context with a 

variation in title.  

There remains a lack of actual evidence to support this imposition.  

The 2018 arguments remain. The following outlines some of these concerns. This is by no 

means an exhaustive list. 

 

• The work undertaken by the Hut City is a desktop view of potentially impacted land. 

Council have subsequently confirmed that surveys will not be undertaken and that 

this desktop and drive-by approach is sufficient. This leaves affected landowners with 

a vague indication, at best, of where restrictions will be placed and the council’s 

reasoning. This does not set up landowners with clarity to be able to abide by the 

restrictions, especially given the dense canopy that exists in the areas outlined where 

precise rules are simply not possible without a marked survey line.  

 

• We are sensitive to ecology and have planted out substantive areas of the property. 

The indigenous vegetation and natural features need defining. The fact remains that 

trees and plants will perish and simply applying such a permanent set of draconian 

rules to an area with a finite life is not balanced.  

 

• We are sensitive to ecology. That is a large part of why we bought land in Eastbourne. 

We accept that the Council has an obligation to protect significant reserve areas 

within the City.  Consequently we do not believe that additional coercive controls are 

necessary or in the best interests of anyone. This continued coercive council 

approach should not be applied as fearful and frustrated landowners are considering 

what measures can be taken while under duress.  

 

• Council’s approach has caused significant strain and stress on individuals.  For 

example: many affected landowners had intended to use their private land, whether 

through sub-division or sale etc. to fund their retirement; one landowner’s house sale 

has already been affected by the proposal in that his solicitor has received a request 

to exit a Sales & Purchase Agreement or reduce the asking price by 10%, and 



another landowner whose mental health has been impacted as a result of this 

stressful and unclear process has required support from a GP.  

Where is the incentive for any owner to be more sensitive to ecology. Instead of this 

coercive approach set a new standard by providing positive incentives for owners – 

enduring rates relief for the impacted part of the property, free plants to plant out 

areas of potential erosion or where trees perish. 

 

• The fact that these areas may not have been modified or only slightly modified is not 

a reason to prohibit future change. Our property was established in the 1920s and 

has undergone significant improvements since that time. The property will continue 

to change and should be able to grow or alter to use more or less of the available 

land in an appropriate manner over time(beyond this next decade).  

 

• The rear land will need additional retention and will need to be upgraded and 

improved to mitigate erosion risk for us and our neighbours. Any new rules must 

include the right to undertake this work for life safety reasons without restriction 

(other than the rules that already existing in the current district plan).  We already 

collaborate with owners on either side ( and behind ) our property 

for the improvement of ecological site wellbeing across adjoining properties. 

 

For historical reference, an HCC initiative undertaken some years ago for the  removal of the  

invasive weed; Passiflora tarminiana, (Banana Passionfruit) resulted in Council contractors 

also dismissively killing a number of native trees in the line across  

 We hence have had zero confidence in any Council initiated work on our properties, 

 

We consider that a more appropriate and effective way of exercising council’s function in 

this regard is for council to direct its efforts to persuade owners of important assets to 

consider their asset on a national scale and encourage those owners to accept such 

mechanisms as QE II covenants or other methods of long-term protection with appropriate 

compensation for acceptance of these covenants. 

 

• Based on a quick assessment of the new maps, it seems that around 1,200 

properties (across the Hutt) are impacted. This public consultation is unacceptable 

given this scale of proposed change. 

 

• The proposed map remains hard to follow – how has this line been established for 

our property at   

 



• We are not aware of any actual visits to our property and therefore question the 

accuracy of what has been presented in the Maps and whether this can be used for 

this  purpose with any sort of certainty.  

 

 

Signed 

 

  

December 14, 2023 

 

-This document has been shared with  similarly disgruntled neighbours in 
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Saritha Shetty

From: David Gibson <adg@spencerholmes.co.nz>
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 2:38 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc: Richard Burrell
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Submission on Draft District Plan -Rosco Ice Cream Ltd [S200380]
Attachments: Rosco Ice Cream Submission LHCC Draft District Plan (final).pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Hello, 
 
Please find aƩached a submission on the draŌ district plan. 
 
 
 
Regards, 
 
Dave Gibson 
Associate - Planning 
SpencerHolmes Limited 
 
PO Box 588, Wellington 6140 
Level 10, 57 Willis Street, Wellington 6011 
adg@spencerholmes.co.nz 
www.spencerholmes.co.nz 
P 04-472-2261  M 021-976-498 
 
Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
 
This email message and any attachments should be treated as CONFIDENTIAL. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, disclosure 
or copying of this message or attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email message in error please notify 
admin@spencerholmes.co.nz immediately and erase all copies of the message and any attachments. 
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15 December 2023 

 

 

 

Lower Hutt City Council 

Draft District Plan Review 

 

Submission 
 

 

1.  Submitters Details 

 

Name: Rosco Ice Cream Ltd 

 Attn:  Richard Burrell 

 

Address: C/- Spencer Holmes Ltd 

 PO Box 588 

 Wellington   6140 

 Email:     adg@spencerholmes.co.nz 

 Phone:    (021)  976 498 

 

 

2.  Introduction 

 

Rosco Ice Cream Ltd (Rosco) holds a head lease over the site at 30 Benmore Crescent, Manor 

Park (Sec 1 SO 493901 held in Record of Title 738223 = 13.2121 ha).  The property is owned 

by Te Runanga O Toa Rangatira Inc.  Rosco are currently developing the site with earthworks 

under GWRC and LHCC resource consents to create useable platforms on the site.  Rosco has 

also applied for further consents to LHCC to construct new private roading and upgrade the 

nearby public roading, as well as to install civil infrastructure (water supply, sewage & 

stormwater disposal) that would support development of the site. 

 

Additionally, Rosco has entered into an agreement to sub lease a large portion of the site (5.78 

ha) to Waste Management NZ Ltd to establish and operate a resource recovery park.  

Accordingly, Waste Management NZ Ltd have also applied for resource consent to LHCC for 

the proposed resource recovery facility.   
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5.  Proposed Flood Hazard Overlay Maps 

 

It is also noted that the Draft District Plan Review maps for the Flood Hazard Overlays show 

that the property is subject to inundation. 

 

However, flood modelling commissioned by Rosco shows that this property is not subject to 

inundation from the Hutt River in a 440 year event.  Additionally, any minor flooding from 

Dry Creek, which runs though the site, would be prevented by the earthworks currently being 

completed and any flooding would be restricted to the stream corridor of Dry Creek. 

 

Therefore, the Inundation Area should be removed from the hazard maps with only the Stream 

Corridor and Overland Flowpath affecting the site – as coincident with Dry Creek. 

 
Figure 3:  Flood modelling of completed earthworks  (River Edge Consulting) 
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6.  Definitions 

 

Rosco supports the definition of “industrial activity”. 

means an activity that manufactures, fabricates, processes, packages, distributes, repairs, stores, or 

disposes of materials (including raw, processed, or partly processed materials) or goods. It includes any 

ancillary activity to the industrial activity. 

 

It is noted that there is no definition or guidance as to what constitutes “outdoor storage and 

work areas” in relation to permitted rule GIZ-R22.  Would ‘storage’ include parking areas or 

car yards?   

 

7.  Proposed General Industrial Provisions 

 

Policies 

 

Policy GIZ-P12 seeks to manage new building work in order to protect privacy and sunlight 

to nearby sensitive activities.  The protection of privacy and sunlight access would appear to 

be seeking a higher level of amenity for the sensitive activity than compared to adjoining 

sensitive activities within the same zone.  Rather than protection of adjoining privacy and 

sunlight access, the policy should be seeking to minimise adverse effects on the amenity of 

adjoining zones.  

 

Permitted Activities 

 

It is noted that a number of rules and standards of the General Industrial Zone apply where a 

site “adjoins” or is “adjacent to” another zone.  The proposal to rezone the railway corridor 

adjacent to 30 Benmore Crescent to be Medium Density Residential would invoke rules and 

standards that seek to maintain the residential amenity of the railway corridor.  Therefore, the 

zoning of the railway corridor adjacent to 30 Benmore Crescent should be amended to be 

General Industrial and consistent with the proposed zoning of 30 Benmore Crescent.   

 

It is noted that “trade and industrial training facilities” are permitted.  However, it is unclear 

whether all trade facilities and industrial training facilities are permitted, or whether these are 

two types of training facilities. 
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Permitted Standards 

 

Rosco supports the proposed permitted standard GIZ-S1 for building height of 22m.  

 

Rosco opposes the overlooking standard GIZ-S4 that all windows higher than 2m above 

ground level, that are within 10m of a boundary with another zone must use opaque glazing.  

The 5m building setback under standard GIZ-S3 should be sufficient separation from another 

zone to avoid privacy intrusion. 

 

Landscaping standard GIZ-S6 requires a 3m wide band of landscaping adjacent to SH2 at 30 

Benmore Crescent.  In addition, a 3m wide band of landscaping is also required adjacent to 

the railway corridor (unless the proposed zoning of the railway corridor is amended to General 

Industrial).  While Rosco is not opposed to these landscaping provisions, when combined with 

the 1.8m high solid screen fencing required for outdoor storage and work areas (that would 

potentially be required on the SH2 and railway boundary) there maybe unintended outcomes.  

Such a solid fence would obscure the landscaping (other than the mature trees) and would 

simply become a target for graffiti and impromptu signage.   

 

8.  Transport Provisions  

 

High Trip Generator Threshold 

 

The high trip generator threshold for industrial activities is proposed to apply to activities that 

involve a building of greater than 2,000m2 GFA.  This is opposed by Rosco, who prefer that 

the traffic generation limit should remain at 5,000m2 as per the current District Plan. 

 

9.  Noise & Vibration Provisions  

 

The definition of “noise” includes vibration.   

 

Rule Noise-R5 only permits an activity where ground vibration effects do not extend beyond 

the boundary.  This rule should be amended to clarify that temporary activities and 

construction activities, are not subject to the vibration rule Noise-R5.  Instead, temporary and 

construction activities are to be assessed against rules Noise-R2 and Noise-R3.   
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10.  Summary of Decision Sought 

That the Council amends the provisions of the draft district plan review as suggested in our 

submission. 

 

 

Signature of person making submission. 

 

 

 

 

…………………………………………………………             Date    15 / 12 / 2023 

A D Gibson 

 

On behalf of Rosco Ice Cream Ltd 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 13 December 2023 10:39 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Hutt City District Plan Review - Submission

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

As part of the Hutt City proposed district plan, the High Density Residential zone outlined is not a well considered 
plan. With the whole of the Hutt Valley floor planned to go to High Density residential hosing, suddenly a whole lot 
of single level warm and sunny houses will be turned into very cold, damp uncomfortable homes as the 2/3 storey 
high density houses next door places these existing homes into total shade with no sunlight. These high density 
houses are always placed right up to the legally allowed boundary and so severely impact the surrounding homes. 
We talk of experience of this as it has happened to our own home.  
                The plan should be to only allow High Density houses to be built within 500 metres of a Railway Station, so 
limiting the impact on the lives of existing houses which are mainly family homes with children. We do not want 
existing homes to be so impacted by the High Density houses that they change from a nice warm building into a cold 
hovel which will occur with the proposed District Plan. 
 
                Regards [as disaffected Hutt City Rate Payer]  
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Saritha Shetty

From: Jessie Smalberger <Jessie.Smalberger@chapmantripp.com>
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 3:58 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc: Nicola de Wit; Luke Hinchey
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RVA - Hutt City District Plan Review - Feedback
Attachments: RVA - Hutt City PDP - Feedback to Hutt City Council.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Good afternoon 
  
Please find attached the survey response/feedback from the Retirement Villages Association of New 
Zealand in relation to the review of the Hutt City District Plan. 
  
Kind regards 
Jessie 
  
  
  
JESSIE SMALBERGER  
SOLICITOR  

Chapman Tripp  

D: +64 9 357 9665  

www.chapmantripp.com  
  
 

Disclaimer 

This email is intended solely for the use of the addressee and may contain information that is confidential or subject to legal 
professional privilege. If you receive this email in error please immediately notify the sender and delete the email. 



 

 

15 December 2023 

Hutt City Council 

Private bag 31-912 

Lower Hutt 5040 

By email to: district.plan@huttcity.govt.nz 

HUTT CITY COUNCIL’S DRAFT DISTRICT PLAN REVIEW 

1 This is a submission on the Hutt City Council’s (Council) draft District Plan (draft 

PDP).   

2 The Retirement Villages Association of New Zealand (RVA) is grateful for the 

opportunity to provide feedback at this early stage.  We are keen to meet with 

Council officers to discuss the draft PDP further.  The RVA and its members have a 

significant interest in the draft PDP.  Their particular interest is in enabling the 

housing and care activities that are necessary to respond to the region’s growing 

ageing population, including retirement villages. 

3 The RVA’s position and evidence in support of its position is well known to the 

Council.  The RVA and Ryman Healthcare Limited (Ryman) were heavily involved in 

Plan Change 56 (PC56).  In that process, the Independent Hearings Panel (Panel) 

considered the relief sought by the RVA/Ryman to have merit, but did not make 

changes to PC56 due to concerns as to legal scope.  Accordingly, the Panel 

encouraged the RVA/Ryman and the Council to use the District Plan review process, 

so the “entire package requested” by the RVA could be considered at once.1 

Areas of general support  

4 We are pleased to see that many of the key issues included in the RVA/Ryman 

submissions on PC56 have been addressed in the draft PDP.  Key aspects which will 

be more enabling of retirement villages, and which the RVA generally supports, are: 

4.1 A restricted discretionary activity status for retirement villages in Residential 

Zones2 and restricted discretionary activity status for the construction of 

retirement villages in the Commercial and Mixed Use Zones;3 

 
1  Recommendation Report of the Independent Hearing Panel – Plan Change 56 (22 August 2023), 

page 56. 

2  Draft PDP, MRZ-R9 and HRZ-R10. 

3  Draft PDP, LCZ-R5.2, MUZ-R5.2, MCZ-R7.2 and CCZ-R8.2. 
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4.2 Public notification preclusions in almost all of the Commercial and Mixed Use 

Zones;4 

4.3 A new definition of “retirement village” that aligns with the National Planning 

Standards definition;5 

4.4 Two new policies in the Residential Zones:  

(a) A specific ‘retirement village’ policy to enable retirement villages and 

manage their effects;6  

(b) A ‘changing urban environments’ policy, to help achieve the planned 

urban environment;7  

4.5 A financial contributions policy that recognises the particular demands of 

retirement villages.8 

Areas for further discussion 

5 Areas where the RVA would be keen to engage with the Council Officers further at 

this stage of the plan process are:  

5.1 Retirement village policy in residential zones – although the specific 

‘retirement village’ policy is generally supported, the RVA would like to better 

understand Council’s concerns as to so called “non-residential” activities 

within retirement villages. Its view (as noted at the PC56 hearing) is that all 

activities in retirement villages are a residential use.  Further, it seeks that 

the functional and operational needs of retirement villages and their positive 

effects both be recognised in the policy to help consenting processes focus on 

relevant effects.  

5.2 Retirement village policy in commercial/mixed use zones - the draft PDP does 

not include specific objectives and policies for retirement villages in any of the 

commercial and mixed use zones.  As detailed in the RVA’s PC56 evidence, 

commercial/mixed use zones provide opportunities for retirement living. 

5.3 Other general policies – in PC56, the RVA sought a new policy for larger sites 

and another policy to clarify the role of density standards in assessing effects. 

We are keen to discuss these with you further. 

5.4 Notification presumptions - the PDP provides public notification preclusions for 

retirement villages in almost all commercial zones.  However, it does not 

include public or limited notification preclusions for retirement villages in 

residential zones or the mixed use zone rules.  These zones are the most 

 
4  Draft PDP, LCZ-R5.2, MCZ-R7.2 and CCZ-R8.2. 

5  Draft PDP, Part 1 – Introduction and General Provisions: Definitions. 

6  Draft PDP, MRZ-P9 and HRZ-P9. 

7  Draft PDP, MRZ-P8 and HRZ-P8. 

8  Draft PDP, FC-P4 and FC Table 1 – Financial Contribution Calculation Methodology. 
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likely locations for new villages and notification preclusions for retirement 

villages in these zones are appropriate; 

5.5 Particular rules – some rules which the RVA considers are not relevant to 

retirement village activities are:  

(a) Rainwater storage tank requirements – for efficiency, retirement 

villages use comprehensive retention systems, rather than individual 

tanks for each unit.9  

(b) Greywater re-use systems - these are expensive to build/maintain, and 

are unnecessary given operators retain ownership of their stormwater 

assets.  The use of rainwater for toilet flushing is impractical due to 

staining of toilet bowls leading to complaints.10 

(c) Wind rules – the height thresholds should align with the permitted 

height standards in each zone.11 

5.6 Matters of discretion - a minor amendment to the specific matters of 

discretion to recognise both the positive effects and functional and operation 

needs of a retirement village.12 

Next steps  

6 As noted, we would be keen to meet your team to discuss our proposals and 

exchange views and information.  In that respect, would you be available to meet 

the RVA and its members to discuss the above topics in more detail? 

7 We also often find it helpful for officers to visit retirement villages in the district so 

they can get a better understanding of the unique features and layout of modern 

retirement villages and the residents that live in them.  We are happy to arrange a 

village tour. 

8 The RVA looks forward to hearing from you soon.  

Yours faithfully 

John Collyns  

Executive Director 

  

Contact details: 

Retirement Villages Association 

PO Box 25-022, Featherston St, Wellington 6146 

Telephone: 04 499 7090 | Email: john@retirementvillages.org.nz 

 
9  Draft PDP, MRZ-R9.1.5 and MRZ-S10, HRZ-R10.1.6 and HRZ-S10. 

10  Draft PDP, MRZ-R9.1.4 and HRZ-R10.1.5. 

11  Draft PDP, WIND-R1 and WIND-R2. 

12  Draft PDP, MRZ-R9 and HRZ-R10. 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Monday, 29 January 2024 2:05 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Rezoning of the rural land in Be more Cres.

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Dear Sir/Madam, 
I'm writing to oppose the rezoning of the rural land in Benmore Cres to industrial. 
The reasons for opposing are as per those put forward by Manor Park Golf Sanctuary and the Manor Park 
Community. 
Yours sincerely 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 11:34 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc: District Plan Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Submission on the proposed district plan

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Kia ora, 
 
I received a letter on the 8 November advising us that our home may be affected by the proposed changes in the Hutt 
City Council Draft District Plan. 
 
As it is open for feedback, I have decided to send in a submission to outline how being classed as a high hazard zone 
will affect my property. 
 
Background: 
I live at  Have done so since 15 October 2004.  During that time we have extended 
the house out the front to add an additional bedroom, and more recently upgraded the facilities to include an 
additional family bathroom. 
We have made improvements so that we can add more value to the home, and make it comfortable to live in.  In the 
future we have plans to extend the house further and add a granny flat for our eldest daughter to reside in. 
 
In addition, in the 19 years that I have lived here, our property has flooded minimally and only within the area where 
the Awamutu stream used to run through.  The flooding was well away from the house, and anywhere we would 
extend the current dwelling or add the potential sleep out.   
 
It’s also worth mentioning that when the Hutt Valley has flooded in the past, other areas not identified as high hazard 
zones have flooded much more severely. 
 
I understand there are other factors, such as sea level rise and the tsunami hazard that affect us here, but that’s wide 
spread across the Hutt Valley.  
 
How will the proposed district annual plan affect us?  

1. We may loose the ability to easily increase the size of our home further and add the proposed granny flat  
2. Our property value will decrease as people will perceive Waiwhetu as an undesirable area 
3. Our insurance premiums will increase substantially, further adding pressure to our financial position  
4. Overall, financially we will be worse off, whilst rates will continue to rise.  So continually paying more for 

something that is a declining asset due to the zones Council are proposing.  
 
What can be done to minimise the affects I have outlined to my property: 

 Assess risk on a case by case basis without the need for the resource consent (which is expensive and seen 
as a money grab).  This is currently what the Council are doing for other houses in our area - for example 
floor level height must be built above the 1% AEP flood level of 3.1m 

 Do not blanket class an area as high risk to avoid property value and insurance premiums are not negatively 
affected. 

 
Conclusion: 
I feel like the blanket zones is going to be a huge issue for my property and others being classed as high risk. I’d also 
like to be able to develop my property (within flooding guidelines) to ensure we can continue living here with our 
growing family. I’d really like to see other options being explored to cope with natural hazards that won’t affect so 
many home owners in the future.  
 
If you would like to contact me to discuss further, please do so by return email. 
 
Ngā mihi 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Friday, 8 December 2023 7:57 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Morning 
 
Can you please advise why my house is rated as high hazard risk. 
 
Thank you  
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Monday, 8 January 2024 11:00 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] District Plan Review - Proposal to Rezone Benmore Crescent, Manor Park

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Sean

Hello  
   
I email in regards to the proposal to rezone the land in Benmore Crescent, Manor Park from Rural to 
Industrial. I oppose this proposal.  
   
I have serious concerns around this proposal and the impacts it will have on our well established and long 
standing residential community. Other concerns are below  
   
Safety concerns with the Flyover  
   

 When exiting Manor Park, there is a blind corner that prohibits any visibility of traffic coming through 
the flyover from Haywards, which is often at speed, resulting in people exiting Manor Park needing 
to take unnecessary risks on a daily basis 

 When traffic comes around the flyover from Haywards or Upper Hutt to head south, the flyover 
splits into 2 lanes, which is confusing and is not adhered to or used correctly by motorists (including 
police officers), resulting in last minute and unsafe lane changes and cutting across traffic, also 
putting motorist trying to turn left out of Manor Park at risk. 

 With the imminent closure of Hebden Cres/SH2 right turns, this is going to result in even more 
traffic, including large trucks using the flyover to head south, further increasing the risk and 
challenges in getting into and out on Manor Park safely. This will require trucks to use a slip lane to 
enter the ramp into the flyover, but then also cutting across 2 lanes of traffic to be able to turn right. 

 Several truck drivers have also confirmed that even at their elevated height, they struggle to be able 
to see traffic coming through from the Haywards when exiting Manor Park, and say it is only a 
matter of time before a serious accident occurs.  

 Due to the steepness of the off ramp into Manor Park, truck drivers have confirmed that the weight 
of their trucks when fully loaded makes it unsafe for them to come down without using their engine 
breaks, and whilst they know it it noisy and disruptive to the residential neighborhood, it is a safety 
concern and requirement for them.  

 At times there can be a large tail of traffic banked up the ramp when the rail crossing barrier arms 
are down. If more than 8 vehicles or large trucks were caught up in this tail, traffic could easily 
extend back into the flyover, impeding traffic flow through the flyover 

Roading Infrastructure does not support the types of traffic and vehicles associated with industrial 
activities  
   

 Currently it is not possible for large trucks to safely and legally make a left turn out of Benmore 
Cresent without crossing over into the lane of oncoming traffic, coupled with a blind corner, and 
often a tail of traffic backed up waiting at the rail crossing makes this turn very unsafe. 

 Currently it is not possible for large trucks to safely and legally make a left turn out of Manor Park 
onto the flyover to head south onto SH2 without crossing over and using the right turn lane in order 
to turn left 





From: haveyoursay
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] draft distric plan
Date: Thursday, 23 November 2023 3:19:58 pm

 

From:  
Sent: Thursday, November 23, 2023 2:53 PM
To: haveyoursay <haveyoursay@huttcity.govt.nz>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] draft distric plan
 

Draft District Plan Rezoning Proposal Feedback
 
I would like to correct several anomalies in the Chief Executive's letter of 8th November
2023.
 
1. our property is below the minimum 1000m2 and
therefore does not meet the criteria for Large Lot Residential rezoning.
 
2. Our property has neither steep slopes nor lacks infrastructure; nor threatens hazards
to others; comparable to some neighbouring properties bordering us.
 
3.The entities (Hutt City Council and Wellington Regional Council) must accept the
legal and financial implications of knowingly permitting bylaw/regulation breaches by
property developers thereon to remove top soil down to the water table and replace it
with 15 feet of erosion prone, slip prone, uncompacted, unretained clay to build on. As
we drew to those entities attention, with photos, prior to completion but were ignored
and did not receive the courtesy of a reply.
 
 rezoning feedback
4. Some years ago we applied for a licence to occupy a native bush clad strip of
Council land on our western boundary to protect and beautify its native bush, birds and
steep slope. We were told the Council was retaining that land to:
a) create a future water resevoir
b)  include in native bush/bird and fauna 'restoration corridors'  linked throughout the
district; which delighted us.
Within a few years we discovered that block of land had been sold to a developer
without public notification of any kind. So much for the birds etc. Have these 
"restoration/regenerative corridors' been removed from district plans. If so why?
Shortsighted not only from a native conservation perspective but also in reducing gas
emissions for climate change.
 
Given the catastrophic state of Wellington's 40% water loss, decisions not to build
resevoirs seems not only short sighted but unconscionable.
New bylaw needed
where Council/Developer breaches cause hazards such as steep, unretained, tree
stripped properties, or infrastructure damage; causing them to slip down onto existing
properties, requiring clearing and restoration, that neglect and/or breach of regulations
should be remedied at the expense, of developers/owners; if not the Councils.
sincerely
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 3:35 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Feedback

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Kia ora 
 
I have a few points of feedback on the draft District Plan. 
 
But first may I thank you for seeking feedback on an exposure draft prior to formal consultation. This will no doubt 
be helpful for identifying and ironing out some aspects, but it also serves to demonstrate openness to feedback and 
build trust with the community. 
 
1. I support the alignment of surburban residential zoning in my street. Currently some properties are Hill 
Residential and others General Residential with no meaningful reason why. The draft proposes both in my street to 
be Large Lot Residential.  
 
2. I support Large Lot Residential allowing an additional small dwelling per 1000m3. I recently required resource 
consent and neighbour approval to add an additional small dwelling on my property. This was granted but added 
additional cost and complexity disproportionate to the minor impact involved, and could have been a barrier to 
realising the benefits of modest low‐impact infill housing, in my case for a family member. 
 
I have a couple of other points to add, but need to finish writing them, so I will email as supplementary to this 
submission as soon as I can. 
 
Ngā mihi  
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Saritha Shetty

From: RMA Policy Planning <planning@powerco.co.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 7 December 2023 8:06 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Powerco submission on draft district plan review
Attachments: Hutt City Draft District Plan - Powerco Submission 12.2023.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Nathan

Our privacy policy is here. It tells you how we may collect, hold, use and share personal information. 

Mōrena, 
 
Please see attached a submission from Powerco on the draft Hutt City district plan.  
As mentioned in the sub; we are more than happy to discuss any detail of the sub or the infrastructure 
chapter further if need be. 
 
Ngā mihi nui, 
Adam Du Fall  
Head of Environment 
+64 6 759 6268 | +64 027 603 0833  
35 Junction Street, New Plymouth 4312 | Private Bag 2065, New Plymouth 4340 
www.powerco.co.nz 
  

 
 
 
********************************************************************** 
CAUTION: This email and any attachments may contain information that is confidential. If you are not the intended 
recipient, you must not read, copy, distribute, disclose or use this email or any attachments. If you have received 
this email in error, please notify us and erase this email and any attachments. You must scan this email and any 
attachments for viruses. 
DISCLAIMER: Powerco Limited accepts no liability for any loss, damage or other consequences, whether caused by 
its negligence or not, resulting directly or indirectly from the use of this email or attachments or for any changes 
made to this email and any attachments after sending by Powerco Limited. The opinions expressed in this email and 
any attachments are not necessarily those of Powerco Limited. 
**********************************************************************  



 

 

Powerco Limited, 35 Junction Street, Private Bag 2065, New Plymouth 4340, 0800 769 372, powerco.co.nz 

 

6 December 2023 

Hutt City District Council 

Draft District Plan Review 

Via: 

District.plan@huttcity.govt.nz 

Tēnā koe, 

 

Draft Hutt City District Plan  

Powerco Limited (Powerco) appreciates the opportunity to provide feedback on the Hutt City draft district plan 

review (plan review). 

 

About Powerco 

Powerco is an electricity and gas distribution company providing essential infrastructure to diverse communities 

across the North Island of Aotearoa. Powerco keeps the lights on and gas flowing to around 1.1 million customers, 

across 452,000 homes, businesses, and organisations in the North Island. We operate more than 28,000km of 

electricity lines and cables, and over 6,170km of gas pipelines. This represents 46% of the gas connections and 

16% of the electricity connections in New Zealand.  

  

A reliable and constant energy supply is critical to sustaining the economy, communities, and our way of life. 

Demand for energy is constantly increasing. Powerco faces an increasing number of constraints on its ability to 

provide secure and reliable energy supplies to meet increasing demand resulting from both population growth 

and the transition to a low carbon economy. 

 

Powerco owns and operates the gas distribution network within the Hutt City area as shown in Appendix A, the 

distribution network needs to be operated, maintained, repaired, replaced, and upgraded to maintain or improve 

capacity or security of supply; regardless of where those assets may exist. 

Powerco’s gas assets include a network of underground gas distribution pipelines and associated infrastructure 

(which may be aboveground, belowground or have components of both) throughout Hutt City.  

The gas distribution network comprises distribution main pipelines (normally steel pipes) that transport gas from 

‘Delivery Points’ to Regulator stations; service mains linking regulator stations or supplying large customers; 

ancillary equipment such as valves and pressure reducing stations; and service pipelines (normally PE pipes) which 

deliver gas to the customer, ending at the meter control valve at a customer’s point of connection. 
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Submission 

Powerco’s submission is not exhaustive and is focused on changes required to ensure that this lifeline energy 

supply can be operated effectively, this submission will not touch on drafting errors. It is noted that the 

infrastructure chapter, for the most part, overrides area specific rules in other chapters of the draft district plan; 

except Historic Heritage Chapter. It is unclear at this stage, if this is also capturing Sites and Areas of Significance 

to Māori – noting that the rules are yet to be drafted. 

 

Definitions 

Amenity values 

Has the same meaning as in section 2 of the RMA (as set out below) 

Means those natural or physical qualities and characteristics of an area that contribute to people’s appreciation of 

its pleasantness, aesthetic coherence, and cultural and recreational attributes. 

 

The Natural and Built Environment Act (NBEA) Transitional National Planning Framework (NPF) was deliberate in 

not including a definition or reference to Amenity Values as this has been the subject of much conjecture under 

the Resource Management Act. With the NBEA highly likely to be repealed, Amenity Value will now continue to 

be an issue that requires navigation and careful consideration. 

Lifeline utilities are required where communities choose to reside, in many instances this will require 

infrastructure to traverse or locate along side landscapes / areas that have ‘Amenity Value’. Powerco seeks that as 

a minimum, the definition for Amenity Value has a consideration of infrastructure (particularly lifeline utility 

infrastructure) that is already present within that Amenity Area. This is of particular importance when replacing 

assets with a modern standard equivalent that may appear different or be larger in scale; such that the ‘amenity 

values’ are not being assessed in isolation to what was present within that environment. 

 

Industrial Activity  

Means an activity that manufactures, fabricates, processes, packages, distributes, repairs, stores, or disposes of 

materials (including raw, processed, or partly processed materials) or goods. It includes any ancillary activity to the 

industrial activity. 

 

Powerco is concerned that this definition could unintentionally capture lifeline utility premises (such as regulator 

stations) or infrastructure (distribution pipelines as an ancillary activity) and seeks that lifeline utilities are 

excluded from this definition. 

 

Upgrading 

As it applies to infrastructure, means the improvement, relocation, replacement, or increase in carrying capacity, 

operational efficiency, size, pressure, security, or safety of existing infrastructure, but excludes maintenance or 

repair. 
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The NBEA transitional NPF defines ‘upgrading’ as means increasing the carrying capacity, efficiency, security, or 

safety’ in relation to the electricity transmission system. Powerco supports wording from this definition being 

incorporated into the draft district plan definition of Upgrading but does not agree that relocating or replacing 

infrastructure is an upgrade.  

Relocation of an asset can be required for various reasons and in many cases the same asset may be reused if it 

still has adequate operational life remaining.  

Replacement also needs to be removed, any replacement constituting an upgrade is already captured in the 

wider definition. However, Powerco strongly recommends that replacement with a modern standard equivalent is 

not captured within the definition of upgrading. Some assets can be 40+ years old and replacement items have 

undergone design or material improvements or changes to adhere to modern safety / design standards. 

 

Infrastructure Chapter 

 

Policies 

 INF-P2 Provide for infrastructure. 

 Provide for infrastructure by: 

1. Enabling the safe, resilient, effective and efficient operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, minor 

upgrade or removal of existing infrastructure; 

 

For effective and efficient operation, existing infrastructure needs to be able to be replaced.  

 

 INF-P6 Adverse effects on infrastructure 

 

This Policy is very concise and does not recognise other infrastructure types outside of the national grid and gas 

transmission system. The policy; as drafted, does not recognise other infrastructure types and that encroachment 

of sensitive activities or land use changes can have an impact on the effective and efficient operation of the gas 

distribution network. 

 

 INF-15 New or upgraded infrastructure in coastal character overlays. 

 

Reiterating what has been described above, there is a need to ensure that replacement of infrastructure is not 

captured as an upgrade; and neither is replacement via modern standard equivalent. 

 

 INF-P16 New or upgraded infrastructure in Outstanding Natural Features & Landscapes 

 

As above, there is a need to ensure that replacement of infrastructure is not captured as an upgrade; and neither 

is replacement via modern standard equivalent. The policy will also need to balance vegetation removal / 

management to ensure infrastructure integrity / safety; with that of the identified values. Powerco suggests that 
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existing infrastructure is recognised to ensure vegetation management is not considered a ‘loss’ when it is an 

operational requirement. 

 

 INF-P17 New or upgraded infrastructure in other overlays. 

 

As above, there is a need to ensure that replacement of infrastructure is not captured as an upgrade; and neither 

is replacement via modern standard equivalent. 

 

 

Rules 

 Rule’s introduction 

 

Include reference to replacement. 

 

 INF-R2 Maintenance, repair, replacement, and removal of existing infrastructure 

 

As described above, it is important to refer directly to replacement of existing infrastructure. 

 

 

 

Standards 

 INF-S1 Upgrading of aboveground infrastructure. 

 

The standard needs to consider assets within the transportation corridor, replacement of modern standard 

equivalent assets can require a relocation due to an increase in footprint where the current location (within the 

transportation corridor) is already constrained. Powerco considers an exemption to this standard within 

transportation corridors is appropriate, especially as rights to access, maintain and replace are already provided 

for under other Acts. A realignment within the road corridor for example, being restricted to 5m in many cases 

will not enable realignment to the opposite side of the road. 

 

  

INF-S8 Cabinets………… and any other infrastructure structure or building not otherwise listed, 

which are located within road reserve or rail corridor. 

 

The definition of Cabinets includes gas distribution enclosures, having a size restricted to 6m2 is in many cases 

unworkable – particularly in an Industrial or rural zone. A more appropriate size would be 10m2 particularly as this 

standard pertains to the road reserve. For clarity, the size of gas distribution enclosures does not change for 

residential purposes, therefore an uplift to 10m2 would also be required. 
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INF-S11 Earthworks – Slope, height, depth and location. 

3. Trenching for the construction, operation, maintenance and repair, removal or upgrade of underground 

infrastructure undertaken within 1.0m of the site boundary must not exceed 1.0m in depth except when 

carried out with a transportation corridor 

 

Infrastructure assets located within the road corridor are encouraged to be as close as practicable to the road 

corridor boundary, it is essential that excavations can be carried out where infrastructure is located close to the 

boundary of a property. 

 

INF-S15 Removal of indigenous vegetation. 

Vegetation removal is exempt from this standard if it is:  

b) Neccesary to ensure the safe and efficient operation of a lifeline utility or any formed public road or 

access. 

 

 

If you have any queries or require additional information; we would welcome any further conversations.  

 

Ngā manaakitanga, 

 

 

 

Adam Du Fall 

Head of Environment 
 

POWERCO  

Planning@powerco.co.nz | DDI +64 6 759 6268| Mobile +64 27 603 0833 
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Appendix A - Map of Powerco Gas Distribution Network within Hutt City 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 2:14 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc: Chris.bishopMP@parliament.govt.nz
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Objection to classification as a "High Hazard Area"

Categories: Peter

I recently received a letter from the council's Chief Executive (Jo Miller) advising that my home at   
 is to be ranked as being in a High Hazard Area under the Hutt City Council Draft District Plan.  

 
I wish to formally register my objection to this classification. 
 
Some of the overlays, for example Flood Hazards, indicate my home would be in an Inundation Area. I live across the 
road from the sea and any flow from nearby Overland Flowpaths would flow across the road to the sea, not spread 
north or south to reach my property. 
 
Further, the formal zoning of High Hazard areas by the council would seem to serve no purpose other than giving 
ammunition to insurance companies to increase premiums and/or withdraw from offering insurance coverage. 
 
Finally, in Jo Miller's letter it is stated "The draft rules seek to avoid new 'hazard sensitive activities' such as new 
housing or additions within High Hazard Areas, unless it can be shown through a resource consent process that the 
risk from natural hazards can be appropriately addressed".  These are meaningless words if there are no clear 
examples or parameters to define "appropriately addressed". How could anyone prove or disprove whether or not a 
new build/addition is appropriately addressing the risk that may be faced from a tsunami? 
 
Notwithstanding any Government requirements under the existing RMA that may force the Hutt City Council to 
declare these hazard areas, I reconfirm my objection and believe the council should do the bare minimum in 
complying with RMA requirements. 
 
Yours Sincerely 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Thursday, 16 November 2023 12:55 pm
To: District Plan Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] District Plan clarification of Rural Lifestyle Zone

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Sean

Hello 
 
In reference to your leƩer dated 8/Nov/2023, I am enquiring as to where in the DraŌ District Plan document I might 
find the key changes described for the Rural Lifestyle Zone.  Specifically I am wanƟng to read about the changes in 
minimum site size and permiƩed buildings.  I have not been able to locate these details in the draŌ District Plan as 
linked (huƩ.city/dpreview).  
 
Many thanks 
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Saritha Shetty

From: Nathan Geard
Sent: Tuesday, 16 January 2024 8:15 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] RE: References from our meeting on Friday
Attachments: Draft City of Lower Hutt District Plan - PHS written submission - Jan 2024 -FINAL.docx; Draft City 

of Lower Hutt District Plan - PHS written submission - Jan 2024 -FINAL.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Nathan

 
 
  
 
 
Nathan Geard 
Policy Planning Manager  

Hutt City Council, 30 Laings Road, Hutt Central, Lower Hutt 5010  
P: 04 570 6996  M:   W: www.huttcity.govt.nz 
 

                                                                     

From: petonehistories@gmail.com <petonehistories@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 15, 2024 10:07 PM 
To: Nathan Geard <Nathan.Geard@huttcity.govt.nz>; Stephen Davis <Stephen.Davis@huttcity.govt.nz> 
Cc: 'Pam Hanna' <pamhannapetone@gmail.com>; 'Nik Zangouropoulos' <nikzang@gmail.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: References from our meeting on Friday 
 
Hi Nathan and Stephen – I aƩach the wriƩen submission of the Petone Historical Society on the DraŌ District Plan. It 
largely covers maƩers we have already had preliminary discussions with you on.  There is one area ‐ the Jackson 
Street precinct – where we wish to have a further look and potenƟally provide further comment.  
 
We would appreciate the opportunity to meet further with you as suggested on these maƩers. 
 
Kind regards – Sylvia Allan (for Petone Historical Society) 
 

From: Stephen Davis <Stephen.Davis@huttcity.govt.nz>  
Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2023 11:49 AM 
To: petonehistories@gmail.com 
Cc: Nathan Geard <Nathan.Geard@huttcity.govt.nz>; 'Pam Hanna' <pamhannapetone@gmail.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: References from our meeting on Friday 
 
Hi Sylvia, 
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We look forward to hearing your feedback. I’ll be away for most of January but Nathan will be hard at working 
digesƟng the feedback and he’ll be your best point of contact unƟl 29 Jan. 
 
Happy to meet with you again in the new year. 
 
Kind regards, 
Stephen Davis 
 
  
 
 
Stephen Davis 
Senior Policy Planner  

Hutt City Council, 30 Laings Road, Hutt Central, Lower Hutt 5010  
P: 04 570 6761  M:   W: www.huttcity.govt.nz 
 

                                                                     

  

IMPORTANT: The information contained in this e‐mail message may be legally privileged or confidential. The 
information is intended only for the recipient named in the e‐mail message. If the reader of this e‐mail message is 
not the intended recipient, you are notified that any use, copying or distribution of this e‐mail message is prohibited. 
If you have received this e‐mail message in error, please notify the sender immediately. Thank you 

  

  

  

From: petonehistories@gmail.com <petonehistories@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2023 11:32 AM 
To: Stephen Davis <Stephen.Davis@huttcity.govt.nz>; 'Pam Hanna' <pamhannapetone@gmail.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: References from our meeting on Friday 
 
Hi Stephen and Nathan – This is just to let you know that the Petone Historical Society is very grateful for the 
opportunity to send you our detailed comments in writing later than the formal date for submissions, which is 
tomorrow.  The Draft District Plan is a complex document, and we need to make sure we provide comprehensive 
comments as a follow‐up to the matters discussed a couple of weeks ago.  We also find that our committee as 
individuals have a great many other commitments at this time of the year, and we do need their input in the 
detailed heritage matters. 
 
We will get written material to you as early as we can in January. Pam and I found the face‐to‐face meeting 
invaluable, and, if possible, we would like to follow up our written comments with a further meeting as further work 
on the plan proceeds. 
 
Kind regards ‐ Sylvia 
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From: Stephen Davis <Stephen.Davis@huttcity.govt.nz>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 4:20 PM 
To: petonehistories@gmail.com; Pam Hanna <pamhannapetone@gmail.com> 
Subject: References from our meeting on Friday 
 
Hi Sylvia and Pam, 
 
From our meeƟng on Friday, the references to relevant parts of the draŌ you asked about: 
 
Jackson Street Character TransiƟon Precinct: within the Metropolitan Centre Zone ‐ 
hƩps://huƩcity.isoplan.co.nz/review/rules/0/70/0/0/0/25, relevant provisions are MCZ‐PREC2‐O1 and MCZ‐PREC2‐
P1. 
 
The urban design precincts, each within their respecƟve zones: 
 
Medium Density ResidenƟal Zone – MRZ‐P7 
High Density ResidenƟal Zone – HRZ‐P7 
 
Local Centre Zone – LCZ‐P10 
Mixed Use Zone – MUZ‐P9 
Metropolitan Centre Zone – MCZ‐P10 
City Centre Zone – CCZ‐P10 
 
Light Industrial Zone – LIZ‐P10 
General Industrial Zone – GIZ‐P9 
Heavy Industrial Zone – HIZ‐P9 
 
If you’ve got any other quesƟons, let me know. 
 
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
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Draft City of Lower Hutt District Plan 

Submission by Petone Historical Society 

 

 

1. Introduction 

Our submission addresses the following aspects of the Draft District Plan: 

• Zoning pattern 

• Management of retail activity - Jackson St and nearby 

• Extent of heritage areas – Jackson St and Heretaunga Precinct 

• Heritage rules  

• Listed heritage items in Petone 

We have focussed particularly on the Petone and Moera areas. 

Our interest on heritage extends beyond the simple concept of heritage identification and 

protection.  The survival of Jackson Street as an economic functioning unit is fundamental to 

the social and cultural health of the lower Hutt Valley. It has been managed carefully through 

the operative District Plan and other mechanisms for three decades by the Council, and by 

the previous borough council.  The economic vitality of other parts of Petone also relies on 

careful management through the District Plan and a careful balancing of opportunities for 

residential and commercial development through finely-tuned land use zoning, as well as 

the management of access and traffic.  This latter has become increasingly problematic in 

the Lower Valley.  

We welcome the opportunity to comment on a draft at this stage, and reserve the right to 

raise additional matters in relation to the proposed district plan when it is notified.  

 

2. Zoning Pattern - Use of Mixed Use Zone 

We note the inclusion of a mixed use zone in the Plan.  This is appropriate in some 

circumstances, and mixed use has been the basis for the Petone Commercial Area, 

particularly the Petone Commercial Area 2, since Plan Change 29 (operative since 2014). 

Now the mixed use concept is proposed to be applied through a new and more widely-

spread zone. We acknowledge that there are limitations to the types of activities which are 

permitted in the Mixed Use Zone, however, the commercial/industrial opportunities posed 

by this new zoning duplicate the opportunities already available in the various commercial 

and industrial zones which already occupy approximately one third of the area of Petone 

and a much large proportion of Moera/Seaview. They also duplicate the various 
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opportunities which are available within the High Density Residential Zone such as home 

businesses, visitor accommodation and childcare/education.   

We are opposed to the application of this zone in the following areas: Cuba St, Petone 

(except for the established semi-commercial area on the west between Huia St and opposite 

the High St junction); two motels and one dairy on Petone Esplanade; The area north of the 

Jackson Street commercial area, including the area described as the Britannia St flats, the 

brick residential block on the corner of Campbell Terrace, and the area on the east side of 

Britannia Street from St David’s Church up to and including Petone Central School site and 

the former police houses east of Elizabeth Street; the Hutt Road frontage between the two 

ends of Riddlers Cres; and the eastern side of Randwick Road.  

Our concerns about this zoning include: 

1. The potential for increased and conflicting traffic, involving access and turning into 

properties or on-street parking. This potential for increased “side friction” is not 

desirable on all the roads within the areas noted above which have major traffic 

functions (i.e. classified as arterial roads) and are already very congested at peak 

times (except for Britannia St, which is an exception). In Petone, numerous problems 

have occurred over the decades with out-of-zone activities which have then 

expanded and caused issues with adjacent residential, such as the modest laundry in 

Cuba St which grew gradually into a major commercial activity causing problems to 

adjacent residential development ranging from noise to hours of operation, street 

parking and turning of large trucks, etc.  

2. That there is a continuing need for residential land in Petone. All the areas noted 

above are currently residential, and comprise a valuable stock of existing housing, 

and now have potential for redevelopment and intensification. The proposed mixed 

use zoning sends the wrong signals to landowners and developers. This has been 

demonstrated through the lack of up-take of Petone West commercial areas by 

housing since Plan Change 29. 

3.  The potential for competition and spread of small commercial activities beyond 

areas such as Jackson St and other established commercial areas, leading to 

economic decline in these areas. This is likely to be exacerbated if other changes, 

such as managed paid on-street parking, is brought into Jackson St. 

4. An increased number of street crossings in Cuba St and Randwick Road, potentially 

driven by mixed use activities, may lead to the loss of the valuable street trees in 

these areas. 

5. Creation of “spot zones” such as proposed for the Esplanade are not necessary, as 

the established activities all have existing use rights. 

6. We recognise that some of these changes were proposed by consultants working on 

Petone 2040. This was before the NPS-UD required the intensification of residential 

activities. We suggest that the operating environment has changed so much since 

Plan Change 56 that the proposals are no longer relevant. 

7. Britannia St is the one area which is not an arterial route. Most of the above 

considerations nevertheless apply. The area contains a number of valued community 
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uses, as well as finely-textured residential activities. These activities have established 

and prospered under a residential zoning, and we consider that the area should not 

be subject to increased pressure to accommodate commercial/industrial activities by 

applying a mixed use zone.  

 

3. Lack of management of commercial floor area – Petone Metropolitan Centre 

Zone/Petone Heritage Area 

 

A cornerstone of the management of commercial activities in Petone, and one of the firm 

bases of the successfulness of the Jackson Street heritage precinct, has been the careful 

district plan rules construct applied since the late 1980s which has ensured that no rival 

centres in the way of malls or groupings of small shops (other than those associated with 

manufacturing type activities or pantry shops) has been able to establish in Petone’s other 

commercial areas.   This has been essential to the survival of the vibrant connected 

shopping/hospitality strip. Similarly, big box retailing has been able to flourish nearby, partly 

on the basis of the attraction of the heritage precinct.  The symbiosis of these two types of 

areas has been demonstrated in, e.g., surveys carried out for Petone Rotary Fair, and in 

relation to the small shops established as part of the Countdown supermarket.   

The draft district plan does not carry through these rules, and we seek to have them 

reinstated.  These were pioneering provisions when first included in the district scheme 

applying in Petone, were rolled over into the current district plan, reviewed and continued 

through Plan Change 29, and reflect sound town planning for this particular commercial 

area.  We consider that they are absolutely essential for the continuing vitality of the Jackson 

Street historic precinct, as well as for the management of its heritage fabric.  There is no 

disadvantage for the remaining parts of mixed use Petone (proposed to be zoned 

Metropolitan Centre) as there are very diverse opportunities for land uses in this zone. 

Preventing small competing retail activities from establishing in eastern Petone (and in other 

areas now proposed for mixed use zoning, which we wish to have reinstated for residential 

activities), other than home businesses, is a valid planning approach for our community.  

 

4. Extent of Heritage Areas   

Plan Change 56 reduced the extent of both the Jackson Street and Patrick Street Heritage 

Precincts, which had featured in relevant district schemes and district plans for decades.  

The changes were made on inadequate understanding of the values (including that the NPS-

UD did not require review of existing qualifying matters such as heritage values) and, in our 

view, inadequate understanding of the values of those areas and the implications of the 

changes of the recommendations made by the consultants employed by the Council.  

The heritage values of both precincts have been damaged by removing parts of them. The 

removal of parts of the precincts which had been modified by replacement buildings 
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designed and constructed under the plan rules which applied at the time (including the 

design requirements) has brought into question the integrity of the approach which 

encouraged renewal and refurbishment.  In Patrick St, an important area of context and 

setting – the Jackson Street sections (424 to 430 Jackson Street) adjacent to the precinct – 

was removed, leaving the precinct vulnerable to inappropriate building height and bulk 

adjacent to arguably the two most important dwellings in the precinct (including the 

dwelling “opened” by Prime Minister Ward when launching the development in 1906, and 

across the road to the first dwelling to be bought by the family who rented it, demonstrating 

the success of the original “rent to buy” concept).  Similarly, the removal of the bookend 

section at 225 The Esplanade, also occupied by a building constructed under the Patrick St 

Design Guide, has denuded the precinct of context. This section and building should be 

included.  

We are seeking the recognition of the full heritage values of the two precincts by reinstating 

the full length of the Jackson Street heritage precinct to Cuba St at the eastern end and the 

inclusion of the 4 properties in Jackson Street adjacent to the Workers’ Dwellings, and the 

one property on The Esplanade, all of which were included in the precinct until late in 2023. 

We consider the concept of “non-contributing” buildings could be applied to the additional 

buildings in the Patrick St precinct (the 4 houses on Jackson Street which we wish to have 

reinstated), despite the fact that two of the existing buildings pre-date the workers 

dwellings.  

In Jackson Street we seek that the concept of Jackson Street Character Transition Precinct is 

only applied to the blocks east of Cuba Street. Up to Cuba Street we seek the removal of the 

suggested transition precinct and the reinstatement of the normal precinct provisions, and 

the reinstatement of the 10m height limit.  

 

5. Heritage Rules  

We are generally supportive of the draft objectives, policies and rules in Chapter HH – 

Historic Heritage.  There are a number of minor typos, which we expect will be identified 

and resolved.  

We note there is no definition of “maintenance and repair” in the plan. This is fundamental 

to an understanding of Rule HH-R1. We suggest that something is needed here. 

We have the same comment in relation to “alterations and additions”. 

In HH-R3, we suggest that this is currently written in a way that could allow partial 

demolition of listed buildings in heritage areas. This needs careful review. This problem also 

seems to apply in relation to permitted activity relocations in HH-R4. Our comment takes 

into account that we are currently not able to view the Schedules, and the basis of 

contributing and non-contributing buildings is not necessarily clear from the draft plan 

maps.   
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We have a continuing concern relating to control over fences associated with heritage 

properties, particularly in heritage areas.  We acknowledge this is probably now achieved by 

reverting to the RMA definition of structure, but we consider that it should be made clear 

somewhere in the plan that control is retained over fence height along the frontage 

boundaries. The inability for the council to exert control over fences that conceal heritage 

value has been particularly problematic in Patrick St. In previous submissions (Plan Change 

56) we have proposed a maximum height for front boundary fences, based on historic 

patterns.  We will be looking for clarity in the plan, and its long-term interpretation on this 

aspect.  

We support the restricted discretionary status of subdivision on land containing heritage 

buildings or other heritage and land within a heritage area – SUB-R7, and the objectives and 

policies which apply.  

 

6. Listed Heritage Items 

We have reviewed the proposed heritage items for Petone in the context of the existing 

district plan provisions, the heritage advisors’ comments, and our previous correspondence 

with officers requesting our input.  We continue to be disappointed that there has been no 

direct face-to-face consultation between the PHS and the Council’s consultants.  We have 

also been unable to locate the applicable schedules in the draft, so have relied on the 

analysis in pages 24-34 of the WSP Report. However, we understand from the maps (and 

discussions with Council officers) that none of the 9 additional heritage areas are proposed 

to be included. This is relevant in terms of some of the items we have comment on below. 

We also note an error on p34 of the report – there are already 4 heritage areas in the plan, 

rather than 3. We have also found some other issues, noted below. 

 

Existing HNZPT Listed Items to be Retained (Heritage Inventory Report – p24 – 26) 

We support the continued listing of all the items here in Petone or Moera 

 

New NZHPT Listed Items to be Included (Heritage Inventory Report – p26 – 27) 

We support the inclusion of all these items that are already listed by HNZPT, but note the 

following: 

• Re the Weltec Campus. The maps do not seem to record the HNZPT listing. 

• The Heretaunga Settlement items. It is not correct to say that these are HNZPT listed, 

as they aren’t all listed and not all are within the NZHPT.  In this case, the District Plan 

recognition of the precinct has been ahead of HNZTP.  We agree that all the Workers 

Dwelling Act 1906 heritage buildings should be individually listed.  However, the p26 

listing omits 3 dwellings built under this legislation – at 11, 13 and 15 Patrick St – 

which were built in 2008 and have a different but fascinating history, which is part of 
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the precinct history. We are happy to provide more detail on request, including 

recent academic research from Massey University. 

• We note that one of the Patrick Street buildings (No 19) was formerly listed for its 

internal as well as exterior heritage values. This appears to have been lost 

somewhere, but the internal features have been carefully preserved by current 

owners. This should be considered in relation to the HNZTP listing, and, if relevant 

additional rules applied to this and any other building which has interior values.  

• We support the individual listing of Jackson Street buildings within the precinct. We 

have not had time to undertake a detailed review of the suggestions. We would like 

to comment, and will do so as an addendum to this submission as soon as we can. 

 

Existing non-HNZPT Listed Items to be Retained (Heritage Inventory Report – p24 – 26) 

We support the continued listing of these items, but consider that there are other items 

already listed which should be continued. We have some information on some of these 

(noted below) and wish to be able to discuss these further with council officers and 

consultants prior to release of the proposed district plan.  

 

Existing non-HNZPT Listed Items to be Removed (Heritage Inventory Report – p28 – 29) 

• We agree with the suggested removal of 1 Britannia St and the reasons for it.  

• 40A Britannia St.  While this is a very old residential building, and in situ, we have 

been unable to find out anything about its history, so would accept its removal from 

the list unless additional information is found. 

• 54 Britannia St. This is an important house, with an unusual history, which has been 

restored.  The house was moved here from 9 Peel Street (corner of Peel and 

Britannia) in 1984 and then to the back of the section in 1987. It is thought to have 

been built for Richard Mothes – an early Petone Mayor. 

• 56 and 70 Nelson Street. These two houses are relicts of early Petone history, with 56 

reputed to be the oldest remaining residential building in Petone.  We consider that 

proper architectural and heritage assessment is needed for these two properties and 

that they should remain listed. 

• Railway cottages – 105 to 119 Hutt Road. These, along with the more modern railway 

apartment block at 117 and 119 Hutt Road, have long been recognised as very good 

examples of a NZ Rail development.  The PHS also sought that the houses at 1, 2, 2a 

and 4 should be included. In the infomation we provided to the council in 2020, we 

noted “Together with the cottages at 105 – 115 Hutt Road (already protected in the 

District Plan) these cottages form a precinct showing how the former Railways 

department used even small areas of land in appropriate locations to house their 

workers. The values of these cottages match those adjoining and already listed.” 

Subsequently the council’s consultants recommended a much larger precinct.  They 

now say that the buildings don’t meet the criteria for individual listing, but will be 
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protected within the recommended precinct.  We understand that is not to be the 

case, and so we seek the retention of the existing listed buildings in this area, and the 

addition of the Mill Road houses.    

• 95 Hutt Road (described as 97 Hutt Road in the consultant’s report). This building is 

surrounded on all sides by motel units, so we accept its values are insufficient to 

justify retaining its heritage status. 

• 162 Hutt Road. This is a very old house, largely unmodified. The council’s consultants  

now say that the building doesn’t meet the criteria for individual listing, but it will be 

protected within the recommended precinct.  We understand that is not to be the 

case, and so we seek the retention of the heritage recognition of this existing listed 

building. 

• The district plan currently includes a number of listed buildings in Nelson Street 

between Jackson Street and the Esplanade – Nos 13, 15, 19, 22, 25, 34, 34A, 36, 38, 

and 40.  Nelson Street is a particularly important part of Petone’s history, as it was 

initially intended to be Petone’s main business street (initially it was named Petone 

Ave). Jackson Street was more sheltered from the prevailing southerlies, so gradually 

overtook these commercial intentions.  Nelson Street is also the last street to be 

retained in its residential form following industrial encroachment in the 1960s and 

70s from the west.  The street, and its listed buildings, demonstrate several typical 

and atypical housing styles of their period.  If these listed buildings are not 

recognised and their heritage status lost, Petone will have no protection for the 

single room width narrow small houses very typical of the west end of Petone dating 

from the late 19th and very early 20th C, the very early semi-detached timber 

buildings, and a range of interesting slightly larger and unusual villas. Amongst the 

notes PHS has which have been used in many heritage walks is the following:  

“Nelson Street Houses – There are a variety of late 19th century houses.  

Narrow houses such as at 36 and 38 were built to suit the very small sections.  

Number 25 has unusual decorations around the porch. 

Number 29 was the home of Mr Holland who owned a jam factory behind the house. 

Next door was the home of the owner and editor of the Hutt and Petone Chronicles 

which operated from 1880s until incorporated into what is now the Hutt News, and 

The Post 

Number 56 was the home of R C Kirk, one of the first Mayors.  

Of special interest is No 15 with its quoins or wooden blocks at the corners of the 

weatherboards.” 

We consider that the council’s consultants have missed some valuable heritage 

information in the superficial review undertaken. We seek to retain the existing 

listing for all the Nelson St heritage buildings.  
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• TS Tamatoa – It is suggested this building does not meet the criteria for listing. This 

needs to be checked with the Sea Cadets, as there is considerable social history 

associated with this building. 

 

New Locally or Regionally Significant (non-NZHPT Listed) Items to be Included (Heritage 

Inventory Report – p30 – 32) 

• We support the inclusion of the Petone Foreshore Beach Kiosk in the heritage listing. 

While Ian Athfield was the architect, it is not known as “Athfield’s Beach Kiosk”.  It 

should simply be described as Petone Beach Kiosk, or, given that a sign has recently 

been erected there, perhaps as “Lions Park Beach Kiosk”.  

• We have not expressed a view about the heritage values of Hardham Crescent area 

in the past, but in the absence of protection of other State housing buildings which 

we have proposed in eastern Petone, we would support their listing. 

• We support the listing of the Petone Rail Station Signal box, the Sacred Heart School 

Hall, the Te Puni Memorial, the Petone Recreation Grounds and Grandstand, and Roy 

Nelson House in Aurora Street (although it is incorrect to state that this was 

proposed by the PHS). 

• We have no view on the listing of the Hutt Estuary Bridge. 

• We support the heritage listing, but have been advised that the memorial to soldiers 

in Memorial Park should not be referred to as the Soldiers’ Memorial, but rather as 

'Petone Cenotaph' or the 'Petone War Memorial'. We suggest this change is made.  

 

 

Petone Historical Society 

15th January 2024 
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Nathan Geard
Policy Planning Manager 

Hutt City Council, 30 Laings Road, Hutt Central, Lower Hutt 5010 
P: 04 570 6996  M:   W: www.huttcity.govt.nz

                                                                    

From: Mike Fisher <Mike.Fisher@huttcity.govt.nz> 
Sent: Friday, February 9, 2024 2:16 PM
To: Tim Johnstone <Tim.Johnstone@huttcity.govt.nz>; Nathan Geard
<Nathan.Geard@huttcity.govt.nz>
Subject: Petone Community Board submission on draft District Plan
 

Kia ora Tim and team
 
As discussed here is a copy of submission from the Board on the draft district plan -
thanks for the extension.
 
Nga mihi
Mike

Mike Fisher

Chairperson Petone Community Board 

M: 021 2521773 W: www.huttcity.govt.nz

           



 

 

 

Submission of the Petone Community Board on the Hutt City Draft District 

Plan 

 
The Petone Community Board (the Board) wishes to make the following comments on the Draft 

District Plan at this initial stage, and in due course with the benefit of further consultation make 

more substantial input when the final version of the plan goes out for public comment later mid-

2024. 

 

Natural Hazards 

The valley floor areas of Petone and Moera are subject to multiple natural hazards. We should 

be listening to experts such as Geological and Nuclear Sciences and avoiding intensification in 

these areas.1 Sea level rise, liquification, tsunami and flooding risk mean that the District Plan 

should prevent rather than encourage intensification where risks, and limits on how to mitigate 

them, mean intensification is not safe or sustainable in the long term. For example, the risk 

areas will become too expensive to insure as insurance companies’ price in these risks.2 

 

The multiplicity of overlays for hazards etc for areas such as Petone, make the plan quite a 

challenge for people to interpret, and anyway these could be simplified would be helpful. 

 

Heritage Zones/Structures 

The Board supports the retention of existing heritage designations, zones and precincts in their 

entirety rather than chipping away of portions of streets or buildings. 

There are always going to be diverse opinions of the nature, value and perception of what 

constitutes heritage however the Board believes the existing heritage designations should be 

retained unaltered. 

 

The Jackson Street Historic Area should include Victoria Street to Cuba Street. This was the 

case until Plan Change 56. We want this area reinstated as heritage to protect heritage and 

associated economic and social benefits this area provides to Wellington. This area should also 

have a 10 metre height limit. 

 

We support some of the railway cottage heritage of Moera being recognised. The initial proposal 

in Plan Change 56 to protect some cottages in Moera a good starting point.  

 

There are likely to beareWe have diverse views about the proposal to designate the area to the 

west of the Jackson St a heritage precinct. While some maySome members support this 

change, others. Others are concerned, while well intentioned, the change would be in conflict 

with the original thinking behind the Plan Change 29 designation. The design and appearance 

of some newer buildings at the western end of Jackson St has been well received, hopefully 

 
1 Dellow, G.D.; Perrin, N.D.; Ries, W.F. 2018 Liquefaction hazard in the Wellington region. Lower Hutt, 
N.Z.: GNS Science. GNS Science report 2014/16; SR 2016-057 (isref.co.nz) 
2 How long will insurers stick with Petone? | The Post 



 

 

 

encouraging developers to follow these examples. This could be required by developing and 

requiring compliance with design guidelines for this area.  

 

The protection and future use of Petone Wharf is naturally of great concern to the Board and its 

historic, tourism and recreational use and potential is a key concern and focus for us and the 

wider community.. We seek recognition of the heritage value of this wharf and encourage every 

effort for its retention. 

 

Intensification 

The previous Governments policy and PC56 has already seen development city wide, and in 

Petone which significantly alter the look and feel of neighbourhoods and streets. There will be 

diverse views on this, from different perspectives, however we would note that the new 

Government has now indicated a different approach, potentially allowing greater flexibility for 

Councils to interpret this policy. 

 

This could have a major impact on the final form of the District Plan and ideally some indication 

of this will be forthcoming before the district plan is finalised. 

 

 

Mixed use zones 

We are concerned about the proposal for a mixed use zone for a significant part of Britannia 

Street, Petone. This would create the potential for significant changes to important community 

facilities such as Petone Library and Community House with minimal community input as much 

wider land use would be permitted. 

 

Also, the vitality of the Jackson Street retail area should not be put at risk by shifting any more 

activity to side streets through mixed use zones.  

 

Randwick Road should not be further commercialised. We do not support these changes.  

 

Active frontages 

Active street frontages are important to vitality and safety and should be required in retrial 

areas. 

 

Water planning/Three waters 

Better management of storm water and reducing run off is important to protecting the Petone 

Community Board area as much of the storm water in the Hutt Valley ends up in the Hutt River 

and enters the harbour in our area. We support requirements to manage storm water on site 

and reducing run off from new developments.  

 

Signs and temporary activities 

We do not want to see digital billboards in our area. These are visually intrusive and create risks 

for more vulnerable road users such as cyclists. 

 



 

 

 

Climate change mitigation 

We want to see protection for existing trees on public land such as street verges. Many of these 

trees are now significant sizes such as in parts of Petone and Moera. These trees can help 

protect areas from urban heat sink effects that are an increasing issue from climate change. 

Protection of trees on private land is more complex. But there should be minimum rules 

addressing the need for trees in urban areas within Hutt City. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment and we look forward to seeing the next version of the 

Plan. 

 

 

 

Petone Community Board 

9 February 2024 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Friday, 1 December 2023 4:26 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] submission

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Peter

I oppose the mixed used zone proposal on the basis of residents already living there, their individual 
circumstances, if they are elderly and need to live there, any disabled living there, and their rights to be there due 
to their circumstances. It would contrdict the intent of the proposal to provide community access and facilities etc 
when it may ask people already living there to leave to make way for the proposed developments. I oppose the 
mixed used zone when or if it infringes on the ability of residents already living there to live normally and quietly 
due to being elderly or disabled.  
  
Sincerely 
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Saritha Shetty

From: ContactHCC
Sent: Monday, 18 December 2023 8:39 am
To:
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] HCC Draft District Plan

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Sean

Kia ora   
  
Thank you for your email. 
  
We have forwarded this to the District Plan team to arrange a reply.  
  
If you would like more informaƟon about HuƩ City Council and our services, please ring our Customer Contact 
Centre on 04 570 6666 or 0800 488 824. 

Thank you, 
Billie  
  
CUSTOMER SERVICES 

  
HuƩ City Council, 30 Laings Road, HuƩ Central, Lower HuƩ, Lower HuƩ 5010  
P: 04 570 6666  M:   W: [www.huƩcity.govt.nz]www.huƩcity.govt.nz 
 

                                                                     
 
 

From:    
Sent: Friday, December 15, 2023 6:25 PM 
To: ContactHCC <contact@huttcity.govt.nz> 
Cc:   
Subject: [EXTERNAL] HCC Draft District Plan 
 
Chief ExecuƟve 
HuƩ City Council 
PRIVATE BAG 3 1912 
LOWER HUTT 5040 
 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO HUTT CITY COUNCIL DRAFT DISTRICT PLAN 
37 MARINE PARADE, EASTBOURNE 
 
I respond in response to your leƩer of 8 November 2023. 
 
Upon receiving your leƩer, I made enquiries at the planning desk of the HCC offices on the 30th November 2023. The 
planning officer on duty undertook to provide a copy of the technical reports upon which the DraŌ Plan was based 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Monday, 11 December 2023 12:46 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Outstanding natural landscape

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Nathan

I notice the tops of part of my hills at  are yet again proposed as a Outstanding Natural Landscape. It 
appears it's the same area that many years you tried to convince council board members, but FAILED, as all 
councillors voted against the plan apart from one I believe remained undecided. Now it appears you want to try the 
same old tricks. 
I remain opposed to the proposal of having Outstanding Natural Landscape on my property as there's no reason to 
support such a proposal.  
I notice my neighbour to the south of me has the same Outstanding Natural Landscape feature on there hill. I find 
this very strange, as you recently allowed  resourse consent for 7 houses to be built on the area proposed as 
Outstanding Natural Landscape features on there land. I also notice you have issued building permits for the 
proposed houses.. 
This is another clear case of racial discrimination by the council. You either remove from my property the proposed 
Outstanding Natural Landscapes or face the consequences. 
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Saritha Shetty

From: phil@primecontracting.co.nz
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 11:25 am
To: District Plan Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Rural Lifestyle Zone - DDP Submission
Attachments: DDP submission.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Nathan

Good Morning, 
 
Please find aƩached our submission in response to the DraŌ District Plan, 
 
Thank you, 
 
Regards 
 
 

Phil Henderson 
Quantity Surveyor 
 

Mobile 027 427 0057 
 

Prime Contracting Services 
 
 



14 December 2023 

 

Hutt City Council 
30 Laings Road 
Lower Hutt 
 

Dear Jo Miller 

 

In response to the Draft District Plan in relation to properties; LOT 4 DP 553568 RT 963791 & LOT 101 

DP 553568 RT 963789. 

We would like to formally oppose the Rural Lifestyle zone and instead propose these properties are 

Re-zoned to Medium density residential. 

As the neighbouring medium density properties are fast getting subdivided and Wise Street extends 

North, LOT 4 DP 553568 RT 963791 & LOT 101 DP 553568 RT 963789 are on the fringe of near future 

developments and would be developed if given the correct zoning.  

Attached is a proposed subdivision of Lot 101 which would be replicated in Lot 4. It is understood 

that all neighbouring properties are earmarked for development if the road were to be extended.  

Current Sewer to LOT 4 DP 553568 RT 963791 & LOT 101 DP 553568 RT 963789 has been future 

proofed to take the capacity of a potential subdivision. Stormwater would be detained on site and 

released in the open drains. The potential for Water, Power and Chorus capacity is available to both 

blocks as well.  

We understand that Hutt City has allowed for a range of housing options to be provided for in the 

recent plan changes for residential intensification. However, this plan change did not allow for any 

future greenfield growth in areas where it would be sensible. A range of housing options is important 

for Hutt Valley to continue to grow and the easiest land to provide for this greenfield growth and 

housing choice is on Upper Fitzherbert Road. 

We believe that up-zoning the land would help meet HCC’s obligations to provide for future growth 

in the city, of which LOT 4 DP 553568 RT 963791 & LOT 101 DP 553568 RT 963789 are in close 

proximity to other land at the end of Wise Street that is already zoned Medium Density Residential. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to voice our opinions and happy to discuss any further, 

 

Regards 

 

PBH Trust 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 22 November 2023 1:55 pm
To: District Plan Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Proposed changes - Hutt City Council Draft District Plan

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Dear Jo Miller, 
 
This is to respond to your letter dated 8 November 2023, I am the owner of  Can 
you please give more clarifications on what this letter means for me? 
 
I look forward to hearing from you soon. 
 
Regards, 
 

 
 
 
 
 



From:
To: District Plan Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Draft District Plan - High Hazard Area - Letter to state physical address impacted
Date: Friday, 17 November 2023 10:56:20 am

To Whom It May Concern

Re: Draft District Plan - High Hazard Area - Letter dated 8 November 2023

We have received a letter to our postal address, a PO Box, about the identification of
High Hazard Area, but it does not state which of our two properties this relates to.

Postal Address:

Physical Addresses:

Please advise which property is impacted by the identification of High Hazard Area
and why?

We recommend future communications state the physical address being impacted.

Thank you.

Kind regards,
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Saritha Shetty

From: Corinna Tessendorf <Corinna@urbanedgeplanning.co.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 21 December 2023 10:07 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc:
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Feedback on the HCC Draft District Plan - Heritage Areas
Attachments: HCC DDP - Feedback - Heritage Areas - Lower Hutt Civic Precinct Heritage Area.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Peter

Kia ora, 
 
Please find aƩached feedback on the DraŌ District Plan by Urban Edge Planning on behalf of HuƩ City Council’s 
Parks and Gardens team in relaƟon to the proposed provisions relaƟng to Heritage Areas. 
 
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

From: Tim Johnstone
Sent: Wednesday, 22 November 2023 5:04 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: Submission on Draft District Plan from 
Attachments: scan_johnstonet_2023-11-22-16-56-22.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Check if replied, Steve

 
 
  
 
 
Tim Johnstone 
Head Of Planning  

Hutt City Council, 30 Laings Road, Hutt Central, Lower Hutt, Lower Hutt 5010  
P:   M: 027 239 3588  W: www.huttcity.govt.nz 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 5:22 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] submission on Hutt City Council District Plan Review
Attachments: TTLH submission Hutt City Council draft district plan.docx

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Kia ora  
 
Please find attached our submission  on Hutt City Council's proposed district plan, prepared by Molly Melhuish and 
Pam Crisp for Transition Towns Lower Hutt.  
 
We would like to speak to our submission if there will be an opportunity.    
 
Ngā mihi nui 
 

 

 
  

 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 

Transition Towns Lower Hutt 
38 Victoria St Alicetown 
Lower Hutt 5010 
Email: transitiontownslowerhuttnz@gmail.com 
 
15 December 2023 

 
Submission on Lower Hutt City Council Proposed District Plan 
 
Category: General 
 
Context: This submission is made on behalf of Transition Towns Lower Hutt. We are 
part of an international network focused on building community resilience and 
regeneration.  Our base is the Transition Towns Community Centre in Alicetown, 
which we run on behalf of Hutt City Council. 
 
Our submission addresses the vulnerability of Lower Hutt and the Hutt Valley to 
climate heating. Given the current state of climate breakdown, and the topography of 
the district - a narrow valley with a large river running through it, very high in some 
parts of the catchment – we believe that low lying areas in particular risk being 
subject to serious or catastrophic weather events caused by global heating.  
 
Our submission on the Council’s ‘Proposed District Plan Change 56 - Enabling 
Intensification in Residential and Commercial Areas’, and our oral presentation to the 
hearings panel, highlighted this risk and emphasised the value of planting trees in 
areas zoned for high density development - not isolated trees, but groups of trees 
planted together in close association, using the Miyawaki method. Such plantings 
offer multiple benefits – environmental, social and cultural – and require very little 
maintenance after the first two to three years.  
 
A relevant example of this kind of approach being looked at elsewhere in New 

Zealand is in flood-prone Dunedin South, where the huge value of trees and green 

spaces in densely packed and flood prone areas is recognised as part of a package 

of measures needed to alleviate the risk of flooding and the displacement of large 

numbers of people. This discussion emphasises the importance of community 







 

to the bacteria, nematodes, amoebae, springtails, and countless other life forms of 
the 60-odd species of the planet’s life forms that live in the soil. 
 
TTLH hopes to encourage building of tiny forests in many parts of Lower Hutt subject 
to overheating or storm damage, especially in the poorest housing areas which are 
often on low-lying or swampy land. We hope to engage with the Council, mana 
whenua and communities to facilitate this major project in resilience.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
Molly Melhuish and Pam Crisp 
Transition Towns Lower Hutt   
 
transitiontownslowerhuttmz@gmail.com  
 
 
Attachments:  
original poster, Ngahere Korowai, and  
“Health, Climate and Biodiversity”:  panel presentation for Taiao.Tangata. Hauora. 
Advancing Planetary Health conference July 5 2022   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

He Ngahere, he Korowai    City forests for climate protection, education, health and energy
Molly Melhuish melhuish@xtra.co.nz 027 230 5911         Our Climate Declaration, Forest and Bird Lower Hutt, Transition Town Lower Hutt, Fridays for the Future           November 2022

The method1 was devised by 

Akiro Miyawaki2 in the 1970s, 

later promoted in India, 

Netherlands, and now by 

UNESCO 3

Typically the size of a tennis 

court, but as small as 100 m2, or 

strip 4 m wide or even less 4

Planted at 3 saplings per square 

meter, typically 30-60 species, 

with ferns, shade-loving shrubs, 

mid-canopy and emergent trees

Forest gains more than 1 metre 

in height/year for up to 20 years

Schools in the Netherlands have planted >200 tiny forests

Scotland is funding 20 tiny forests post-COP26

Akiro Miyawaki always had children do the planting 5

A Nelson community planted New Zealand’s first Miyawaki forest6, using biochar to 

improve the soil

Wainuiomata Marae now plans a tiny forest as part of cultural playground that celebrates the 

indigenous ancestors, early settlers, and history and ecology of the district

Plants must be eco-sourced: from volunteer “potting groups” or local nurseries

Government’s Biodiversity Implementation Plan7 and Climate Adaptation Plan8 call for:

“ joined up efforts that tackle biodiversity loss and climate change together ”

Hence Jobs for Nature as a funding source

A tiny forest 2 

years 5 months 

old  Highest 

trees are 3 to 4 

metres high

Logs in a circle, 

open space next 

to tiny forest, 

with  insect 

hotel, and path 

through the tiny 

forest  

Information 

board, great  

graphics and 

explanations – it 

says that 

children in the 

local community 

planted it and 

are forestry 

rangers who 

protect it and 

learn as they go

New Zealand’s first 
Miyawaki Forest, Nelson
Height after 14 months, up to 2 2 m

Soil augmented with biochar and 

mushroom compost

Urban intensification
Building up to three houses into backyards replaces gardens and mature trees with roofs and driveways

Urban regeneration is best tackled at the precinct level19 – consider forest belts on active transport routes

Trees in the urban environment promote health26 while mitigating many environmental and social issues 20

A “simpler way” is needed to respond to climate change and resource scarcity; 21 traditional uses of native 

ecosystems translated to urban settings would support that goal

Ecological economics recognises the fundamental importance of nature’s services to human economies, but 

today’s financial systems ignore this reality and are driving unsustainable economic growth 22

The science: how trees drive the water cycle

References

Research priorities – both university and citizen science

Comparison of Miyawaki planting with traditional native forest restoration:

• Biodiversity of birds, other vertebrates, insects, soil fauna, and fungi 

• Carbon sequestration above and below ground

• Microbiology of soil under trees planted into grass compared to modified or 

structural soils

Practical research on planting strategies:

• Survival of containerised vs bare-root stock, and costs of each

• Growth rates of trees in loam vs  “structural soil” (designed for trees on streets)

Rescue Forests photos Molly  Melhuish

Deer are stripping palatable forest 

understorey in Hutt hills9; deer and 

rabbits damage restoration plantings

Tiny forests in the city could preserve 

species and become seed sources  

Damage in forest restoration at Waiu Swamp, 

Wainuiomata  Clockwise: 5-finger, māhoe wao, 

lemonwood – do these trees have any future? 

Costs (growing, planting, maintenance of trees)

Collaborators
Star Olsen, Wainuiomata Marae

Francesca Pouwer, Fridays for the Future Aotearora

Jennifer Vinton, Forest&Bird Lower Hutt 

Pam Crisp, Transition Towns Lower Hutt

Epilogue
“We paved paradise! – and put up a parking lot!”

Urban intensification is designed to reduce car 

numbers but will remove many mature trees  Let’s 

turn some of those parking lots into tiny forests!

Miyawaki method requires at least six times as many plants as ordinary forest restoration

Planting is just 5% of the the cost of urban tree management in USA cost; pruning is almost half  24

Open-ground stock is potentially half the cost ($0 50-$1 50) of the commonly produced larger 

container options ($2 50-$3 50), but ‘shelf life’ of bare root plants after lifting is very limited 25

The sun’s energy that warms the planet also builds biomass  Forests and trees are prime regulators 

within the planet’s water, energy, and carbon cycles, which planners must understand in order to  

assess, adapt to, and mitigate the impacts of changing land cover and climate.11

Over 70% of solar radiation reaching densely packed natural vegetation is actively transpired into 

the air as water vapour ” 13

The number and types of urban trees can play a commanding role in cooling cities, offsetting 

heating from paved surfaces,14 and controlling storm water 15

Example,  Tiny 
Forest design10

A narrow belt of trees protected adjacent buildings from massive fire 

after earthquake 23

Tiny Forest Near Rotterdam Photo, Francesca Pouwer

Deer and rabbit damage

Ecosystem services
“Working closely with nature to create effective human settlements while maintaining healthy 

ecosystems has been a cornerstone of many very old Indigenous belief systems ”16

Databases of blue and green infrastructure in fifteen world cities17, and the Miyawaki method 18

A tiny forest is not a natural forest, but a designed system creating biodiversity, health, resilience

The open space with tree logs is an outdoor classroom and a lovely spot for people to come 

together, and even hold birthday parties

The forest brings Nature to a 22-storey apartment just across the road – see top right

1  https //www.sugiproject.com/blog/why-we-use-the-miyawaki-method
2  https //www.jstage.jst.go.jp/article/plantbiotechnology1997/16/1/16_1_15/_pdf/-char/en
3  https //www.unescogreencitizens.org/projects/tiny-forest/
4  https //urban-forests.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Urban-Forests-report-The-Miyawaki-method-–-Data-concepts.pdf
5  https //www.youtube.com/watch?v cfZTzsQ4gEs
6  https //www.facebook.com/MicroforestNelson
7  https //www.doc.govt.nz/nature/biodiversity/aotearoa-new-zealand-biodiversity-strategy/te-mana-o-te-taiao-implementation-plan/
8  https //environment.govt.nz/publications/aotearoa-new-zealands-first-national-adaptation-plan/
9  https //www.forestandbird.org.nz/resources/maps-reveal-nations-forests-under-attack-wild-deer-pigs-and-goats
10  https //www.ivn.nl/file/89213/download?token uzWbuM9b 
11  https //www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0959378017300134
13  https //wedocs.unep.org/bitstream/handle/20.500.11822/36619/FB025.pdf
14  https //iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1088/1748-9326/10/8/084010
15  https //www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6134866/#R67
16  https //www.mdpi.com/2071-1050/13/22/12660 
17  https //orca.cardiff.ac.uk/id/eprint/64906/1/Database_Final_no_hyperlinks.pdf
18  https://urban-forests.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/Urban-Forests-Scientific-research-on-urban-forests-created-with-the-Miyawaki-method-around-the-world.pdf

19 https //link.springer.com/content/pdf/10.1007/978-981-16-6238-6.pdf
20  https //www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fevo.2021.603757/full
21   http //www.paecon.net/PAEReview/issue99/Trainer99.pdf 
22  https //www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0921800919310067
23  https //morinoproject.com/english
24  https //www.epa.gov/heatislands/using-trees-and-vegetation-reduce-heat-islands
25 https //www.tanestrees.org.nz/projects/performance-of-open-ground-and-container-raised-natives-planted-on-hill-country-lake-taupo-catchment/
26 https //www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fmicb.2019.00550/full?report reader

Ko te Ngāhere he Korowai, he tohu aroha mo Papatūānuku. Ko tana tamariki a Tāne
Māhuta e mōna.

The forest is a cloak, a symbol of love for Papatūānuku. Grown for her by her child 
Tāne Māhuta.

Our forests can bring Nature into cities and towns If the best practices are followed in 

keeping with nature, AS CLOSE as possible to the level of detail Tāne reached in his efforts 

– the pinnacle of excellence – then the standard has been set  Nothing but the best is the 

expectation and the goal

All the very best that nature has to offer could be shown off in a tiny forest

This could be realised in a town like Wainuiomata for Whānau of all ages  Something the 

entire community will benefit from

A Miyawaki forest, with 

interlocked roots and 

branches, mitigates harm 

from tsunami, flood, wind 

storm; its high moisture 

content mitigates harm 

from fire 23

Disaster-preventative forests



 

 
 
 



 

Health, Climate and Biodiversity:  panel presentation for Taiao.Tangata. Hauora. Advancing 

Planetary Health conference July 5 2022  Molly Melhuish, 11 July 2023   melhuish@xtra.co.nz 

Biodiversity heals -in two ways 

 The planet - if you plant diverse native trees and modify the soil to accept forest fungi and 
microorganisms, the trees grow fast, even spectacularly so.1  2 3 

 People - biodiverse microbiota protect people, especially against auto-immune disease4 5, 

most effectively in first 1000 days of a person’s life.6 

We will conclude that early childhood education centres, especially kohanga reo, should plant even 

small Ngahere Korowai, as small as 30 sq. m., on their premises.  

Indigenous cultures thrived when they practiced the Gift Economy of Nature.7 

Colonisers stole their resources, taking them without the permission that was traditional. The 

colonisers’ Market Economy counted only the benefits of a resource and ignored environmental and 

social costs. Under Treaty settlements, iwi now collaborate with corporates and government to 

“manage” resources within the market economy, which can leave bereft the whanau and hapu who 
managed those same resources under their own traditions to create health and wellbeing.8 

 

We describe the Miyawaki method9, very different from standard native forest restoration practice10. 

 It begins with the soil, digging deep and amending it, to allow forest microbiota to replace 

grass-type microbiota. 
 It plants at least three trees per sq m, six times as many as in most restoration. It needs no 

weeding or other attention after 2-3 years, and achieves ecological integrity at as little as 30 sq. m. 

 Trees show astonishing growth rates, with leaves typically 30 times the green surface area of 

a lawn; it attracts fauna that were 18 times more biodiverse in one European example.11  

 
Under a market economy, creating a Miyawaki forest requires a ditch digger to prepare the soil. The 

potted plants are expensive – in Nelson $3.50 or $7.50 each from a nursery. 

Under a Gift Economy, trees are grown by voluntary work in nurseries. Conceivably a very small 

ditch digger could be driven by rangatahi under supervision.  

Two types of urban Miyawaki forests are described: 

Korowai,12 is a forest as small as parking space for two cars, or as large as a tennis court, that might 

be placed at a kohanga reo or early childhood education centre13, or a school.   

Makuru – “abundant, fruitful” -14, managed for useful products but without sacrificing full 

biodiversity. It could start as a small forest and be increased year by year. This would be ideal for 

continuing rangatahi participation and management.  

For Korowai, aim to include every species found in the natural forest that it is based on – perhaps 

as many as 60 species including ferns and mosses. It can rescue species being browsed to extinction 

in nearby forest. A cut-down pallet covered with branches and soil provides a refuge for skinks and 

geckoes. Also we suggest building a very small plant nursery with a small shade house, associated 

with kohanga reo or even health facilities for pregnant women– for “therapeutic horticulture15 16  

We suggest stand-out areas plumbed for watering along a parking area or berm. 

The Makuru forest could produce poles in 4-5 years that could be harvested for a pole fence to 

surround Korowai, or even for energy. Some species that grow very fast are hardwoods that are 

excellent for poles or tool handles, such as manuka, kanuka, akeake. Coprosmas and wineberry are 

also very fast-growing; all these provide massive food resources for birds and insects. Carefully 
harvested humus and litter can augment potting soil. A full layer of sub-canopy trees must be 

retained; climax species will acquire many vines and epiphytes, homes for insects, birds, geckoes. 
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Saritha Shetty

From: Imogene Jones <Imogene.Jones@minterellison.co.nz>
Sent: Friday, 15 December 2023 5:27 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Cc: Bianca Tree
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Oyster Management Limited - City of Lower Hutt City Draft District Plan Feedback 

[MERWNZ-MERWLIB.FID821292]
Attachments: Oyster Management Limited - City of Lower Hutt City Draft District Plan Feedback.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Kia ora,  
 
We act for Oyster Management Limited (Oyster).  Oyster appreciates the opportunity to provide feedback on the City 
of Lower Hutt Draft District Plan (DDP).  
 
Please find the attached table setting out feedback on relevant provisions of the DDP.  
 
It would be appreciated if you can confirm receipt. 
 
Kind regards   
Bianca and Imogene 

Imogene Jones (she/her) 
  

Solicitor 
 

T +64 9 353 9986   M +64 27 296 1723
 

imogene.jones@minterellison.co.nz 

MinterEllisonRuddWatts 
 

minterellison.co.nz | LinkedIn 
   

 

 

---------------------------- 
Important information 
This email and any attachments are confidential and may be legally privileged (in which case neither is waived or lost by mistaken 
delivery). Please notify us if you have received this message in error, and remove both emails from your system. Any unauthorised 
use is expressly prohibited. MinterEllisonRuddWatts collects personal information to provide and market our services (see our privacy
policy at minterellison.co.nz for more information about use, disclosure and access). MinterEllisonRuddWatts' liability in connection 
with transmitting, unauthorised access to, or viruses in this message and its attachments, is limited to re-supplying this message and 
its attachments.   
 
Lawyers are required to seek verification of their client’s identity. Learn more. 
---------------------------- 
  

 





character reflecting the industrial history of the area and the traditional character of the 
Jackson Street Heritage Precinct. 

development that is unreasonably 
restrictive and fails to give effect to the 
enabling provisions of the NPS-UD. 

Metropolitan 
Centre Zone  

(Jackson) 

MCZ-
PREC2-P1 

Character values  

Manage the appearance, layout, and form of buildings and structures to promote an 
evolving new character and identity in the Precinct that will sympathetically reflect the 
heritage values of the Jackson Street Heritage Precinct and the industrial history of the 
western Petone area, by promoting: 

1. Buildings sympathetic to the architectural themes and materials of at least one of 

a. the Jackson Street Heritage Precinct or 

b. the 20th century industrial buildings of western Petone, 
with preference to the themes and materials expressed in existing 
adjoining buildings, 

2. A compatible and continuous building frontage along Jackson Street, 

3. Consistent floor to floor heights where these are strongly expressed in the 
exteriors of adjacent buildings, 

4. The use of chamfered or rounded corners and additional vertical elements 
for buildings on street corners, 

5. The expression of horizontal elements in preference to vertical elements, 

6. The use of discrete windows rather than continuous glazed frontages, 

7. The use of parapets and cornices, 

8. The use of decoration and colour, 

9. The use of verandahs as integral parts of buildings, and 

10. The use of signage scaled to a pedestrian audience. 

 

For the avoidance of doubt, this policy does not affect the anticipated height, scale, or 
density of developments, except where above the level anticipated by the relevant bulk 
and location standards. 

Oyster opposes the introduction of the 
Jackson Street Character Transition 
Precinct.  

 

Oyster considers that the Jackson Street 
Character Transition Precinct introduces 
new restrictions on the design of future 
development that is unreasonably 
restrictive and fails to give effect to the 
enabling provisions of the NPS-UD. 

Metropolitan 
Centre Zone  

MCZ-R15 Commercial activities not otherwise provided for  

 

Oyster supports MCZ-R15.  





Wellington Fault Hazard Overlay   

High 

 
Stream Corridor (1% AEP flood event + 1m sea 
level rise)  

Wellington Fault Induced subsidence  

 

Medium 
Overland Flowpath (1% AEP flood event + 1m sea 
level rise)  

Slope Hazard Area 

Liquefaction Hazard Zone  

Low 
Inundation Area (1% AEP flood event + 1m sea 
level rise) 

 

Natural 
Hazards 

NH-01 Risk from Natural Hazards in High Hazard Areas of the Natural Hazard Overlays:  

Subdivision, use and development within the High Hazard Areas of the Natural Hazards 
Overlays reduce or avoid increasing the existing risk from natural hazards to people, 
buildings and structures 

Oyster supports the use of the language 
“reduce or avoid increasing” high hazard 
risk in NH-01.  

Natural 
Hazards  

NH-P2 Levels of Risk:  

 

Subdivision, use and development manages the natural hazard risk to 
people, buildings and infrastructure by: 

 

1. Allowing for those buildings and activities for use and development that have 
either low occupancy or low replacement value within the low, medium and high 
hazard areas of the Natural Hazard Overlays. 

2. Requiring buildings and activities use and development to mitigate the risk 
resulting from the development from natural hazards to people, buildings and 

Oyster supports the general intention of this 
provision.   
 
However, ‘subdivision, use and 
development’ has been replaced with 
‘subdivision, buildings, and activities’ 
throughout NH-P2.1. – NH-P2.3.  The 
language of the DDP needs to be clear and 
consistent, and Oyster seek amendments to 
NH-P2 to apply ‘subdivision, use and 
development’ throughout NH-P2.1. – NH-
P2.3., as this terminology will be easier to 
follow for plan users.   



infrastructure as far as reasonably practicable in the low hazard and medium 
hazard areas within the Natural Hazard Overlays; and 

3. Avoiding Reducing, or avoid increasing existing risk through subdivision, 
buildings and activities use and development in the high hazard areas of 
the Natural Hazard Overlays unless there is an operational need or functional 
need for the building or activity to be located in this area and the building or 
activity mitigates the existing risk from natural hazards to people, buildings and 
structures.  

 

 

Oyster considers that the language used in 
NH-P2.3. does not accurately reflect the 
language of the Natural Hazards chapter.  
For example, NH-01 uses the terminology 
‘reduce or avoid increasing risk’ in high 
hazard areas. ‘Reduce or avoid increasing 
existing risk’ should be reflected in NH-
P2.3, by using this phrase in replacement of 
the word ‘avoid’.  

Natural 
Hazards 

NH-P6 Additions to existing buildings and structures within the Wellington Fault Overlay  

 

Additions to existing buildings in the Wellington Fault Overlay are managed as follows: 

1. Allow for additions to existing buildings for Less Hazard Sensitive Activities 
within the poorly constrained, uncertain constrained, distributed, well defined and 
well defined extension areas of the Wellington Fault Overlay. 

2. Allow for additions to existing buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard 
Sensitive Activities and Hazard Sensitive Activities within the poorly constrained, 
uncertain constrained, distributed, well-defined or well-defined extension areas 
where: 

a. They are located more than 20m from the edge of the fault deformation 
zone; or 

b. Mitigation measures are incorporated into the building to maintain life 
safety of the occupants and the structural integrity of the building in the 
event of fault rupture 

Oyster supports the intention of NH-P6.  
The sub-categories of the Wellington Fault 
Overlay (i.e. poorly constrained, uncertain 
constrained, distributed, well defined and 
well defined extension areas) are not 
defined in the DDP maps or in the District 
Plan Chapters.  
 
Oyster considers that these sub-categories 
within the overlay should be clearly defined 
in the plan.  
 
For example, it is currently unclear what 
sub-category 106 Jackson Street falls 
within. 

Natural 
Hazards  

NH-P7 Subdivision, use and development within the Wellington Fault Overlay  

 

New subdivision use and development within the Wellington Fault Overlay are managed 
as follows: 

1. Allow for new allotments, buildings, or the conversion of existing buildings that 
will contain Less Hazard Activities within the poorly constrained, uncertain 
constrained, distributed, well defined and well defined extension areas of the 
Wellington Fault Overlay. 

Oyster supports NH-P7. 
 
However, Oyster considers the sub-
categories of the Fault Overlay must be 
clearly defined, due to the divergence in risk 
management between different 
classifications.   
 
 



2. Provide for new buildings, allotments, or the conversion of existing buildings that 
will contain a for Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities and Hazard Sensitive 
Activities within the poorly constrained, uncertain constrained or distributed 
areas of the Wellington Fault Overlay where: 

a. Any new buildings, building platforms associated with subdivision, or 
existing buildings are located more than 20m from the edge of the fault 
deformation zone; or 

b. Mitigation measures are incorporated into the building to maintain life 
safety of the occupants and the structural integrity of the building in the 
event of fault rupture. 

3. Avoid subdivision, use, and development for potentially hazard sensitive 
activities and hazard sensitive activities within the well-defined or well- defined 
extended areas of the Wellington Fault Overlay unless: 
 

a. Any new building platforms associated with subdivisions, 
new buildings or the conversion of existing buildings are located more 
than 20 m from the edge of the fault deformation zone of the Wellington 
Fault Overlay; or 

If locating the building, building platforms associated with subdivision, or activity 
more than 20m from the edge of the fault deformation zone of the Wellington 
Fault Overlay is not a practicable option: 
 

a. For any that has an operational need or functional need to locate 
within the well-defined or well-defined extended areas of the 
Wellington Fault Overlay and locating outside of these areas is 
not a practicable option, mitigation measures are incorporated 
into the building to minimise the risk to life of the occupants and 
the structural integrity of the building on the event of fault 
rupture; or 

b. For any other potentially hazard sensitive activities and hazard 
sensitive activities, mitigation measures are incorporated into 
the building to not increase risk to life of the occupants and the 
structural integrity of the building in the event of fault rupture. 

Natural 
Hazards  

NH-P8 Additions to existing buildings and structures in the Flood Hazard Overlay 

Additions to existing buildings and structures in the Flood Hazard Overlay are managed 
as follows: 

Oyster supports NH-P8.  



1. … 

2. Provide for additions to existing buildings and structures for less hazard sensitive 
activities within the Overland Flowpaths and the Stream Corridors of the Flood 
Hazard Overlay where: 

a. The risk to people, buildings and infrastructure on site from the 1% 
Annual Exceedance Probability Flood is minimized due to the 
incorporation of mitigation measures; 

b. The existing risk to people, buildings and infrastructure on adjacent 
properties is reduced or not increased from the 1% Annual Exceedance 
Probability Flood; and 

c. The Overland Flowpaths or Stream Corridor remain unimpeded and 
unobstructed to allow for the conveyancing of flood waters and flood 
waters are not diverted onto adjacent properties or blocked 

3. Provide for additions to existing buildings for Potentially Hazard Sensitive 
Activities and Hazard Sensitive Activities in the Inundation Area of the Flood 
Hazard Overlay, where: 

a. The risk from the 1% Annual Exceedance Probability Flood to people, 
and buildings on site are minimised due to the incorporation of mitigation 
measures; and 

b. The risk to people, buildings and infrastructure on adjacent properties is 
reduced or not increased from the 1% Annual Exceedance Probability 
Flood. 

Natural 
Hazards  

NH-P9  Subdivision, use and development in the Flood Hazard Overlay are managed as 
follows: 

1. … 

2. … 

3. Provide for new buildings, building platforms, and the conversion of 
existing buildings that will contain Potentially Hazard Sensitive 
Activities and Hazard Sensitive Activities in the Inundation Area of the Flood 
Hazard Overlay, where: 

a. The risk from the 1% Annual Exceedance Probability Flood to people 
and buildings is minimised through either: 

i. The implementation mitigation measures; 

Oyster supports NH-P9.  



ii. The depth of the flood waters within the building; or 

iii. The type of activity undertaken within the building; and 

b. The risk to people, buildings and infrastructure on adjacent properties is 
reduced or not increased from the displacement of floodwaters from 1% 
Annual Exceedance Probability Flood. 

Natural 
Hazards  

NH-P10 New buildings and the Conversion of Existing Buildings in the Liquefaction Hazard 
Overlay  

1. Allow for additions to existing buildings and structures for Less Hazard Sensitive, 
Potentially Hazard Sensitive and Hazard Sensitive Activities within the 
Liquefaction Hazard Overlay; 

2. Allow for new buildings and structures for Less Hazard Sensitive and Potentially 
Hazard Sensitive Activities within the Liquefaction Hazard Overlay; 

… 

Oyster supports the intention of NH-P10.  
 

Oyster considers that the ‘Liquefaction 
Hazard Overlay’ should be clearly defined 
in the DDP, mirroring the approach taken to 
defining the Coastal Hazard Overlays in the 
Coastal Environment Chapter Introduction.  

Natural 
Hazards 

NH-P11 New Buildings and the Conversion of Existing Buildings in the Fault Induced 
Subsidence Hazard Overlay  

 

Use and development within the Fault Induced Subsidence Hazard Overlay are 
managed as follows: 

1. Allow for additions to existing buildings and structures for Less Hazard Sensitive, 
Potentially Hazard Sensitive and Hazard Sensitive Activities within the Fault 
Induced Subsidence Hazard Overlay; 

2. Allow for new buildings and structures and the conversion of 
existing buildings that will contain Less Hazard Sensitive and Potentially Hazard 
Sensitive Activities within the Fault Induced Subsidence Hazard Overlay 

… 

Oyster supports the intention of NH-P11.  
 

Oyster considers that ‘Fault Induced 
Subsidence’ should be clearly defined in the 
DDP, mirroring the approach taken to 
defining the Coastal Hazard Overlays in the 
Coastal Environment Chapter Introduction. 

Natural 
Hazards  

NH-R2  Additions to existing buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard Sensitive 
Activities and Hazard Sensitive Activities within the poorly constrained or the 
uncertain constrained areas of the Wellington Fault Overlay  

 

1. Activity status: Permitted  

Where:  

Oyster generally supports NH-R2 subject to 
further clarification on the sub-areas.  



a. The additions do not increase the gross floor area by more than 25m2  

 

2. Activity status: Restricted discretionary  

Where:  

a. Compliance with NH-R2-1.a. cannot be achieved 

Natural 
Hazards  

NH-R3 Additions to existing building and structures for Potentially Hazard Sensitive 
Activities and Hazard Sensitive Activities within the well-defined or well-defined 
extension areas of the Wellington Fault Overlay 

 

1. Activity status: Restricted discretionary  

 

Matters of discretion are restricted to:  

1. The scale and size of the addition and how it changes the risk of building 
damage as a result of its construction. 

2. The change in risk to life as a result of the additions being undertaken on the 
site. 

3. The location of the additions relative to the fault line and any mitigation 
measures to reduce the impacts to life and buildings from fault rupture. 

The relevant matters in NH-P6. 

Oyster generally supports NH-R3 subject to 
further clarification on the sub-areas. 

Natural 
Hazards  

NH-R5 New buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities and 
Hazard Sensitive Activity within the poorly constrained or the uncertain 
constrained areas of the Wellington Fault Overlay 

 

1. Activity status: Controlled 
 
Where: 

a. The building is being constructed on an existing vacant site. 
 

2. Matters of control are limited to: 

Oyster generally supports NH-R5 subject to 
further clarification on the sub-areas. 



a. The ability for the building to maintain life safety as a result of fault 
rupture. 

b. The location of the building relative to the fault line and any mitigation 
measures to reduce the impacts from fault rupture. 

2. Activity status: Restricted discretionary 
 
Where: 

a. Compliance with NH-R5-1.a cannot be achieved 
 

3. Matters of discretion are restricted to: 

a. The ability of the existing building to maintain life safety as a result of 
fault rupture. 

b. The ability of the existing building to remain structurally sound as a result 
of fault rupture. 

c. The location of the existing building relative to the fault line and any 
mitigation measures to reduce the impacts from fault rupture. 

The relevant matters in NH-P7. 

Natural 
Hazards 

NH-R6 New buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities and 
Hazard Sensitive Activities within the well-defined or well defined extension areas 
of the Wellington Fault Overlay 

 

1. Activity status: Non-complying 

Oyster opposes the non-complying activity 
status in NH-R6 subject to further 
clarification on the sub-areas. 

Natural 
Hazards 

NH-R9 Additions to existing buildings that contain Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities 
and Hazard Sensitive Activities in the Inundation Area of the Flood Hazard Overlay 

 

1. Activity status: Permitted 
 
Where: 

a. When located within an Inundation Area of the Flood Hazard Overlay, 
the finished floor levels of the building for the hazard sensitive activity is 
located above the 1% Flood Annual Exceedance Probability level, plus 

Oyster supports NH-R9.  



the height of the floor joists or the base of the concrete floor slab and an 
allowance for freeboard. 

 

2. Activity status: Restricted discretionary 
 
Where: 

a. Compliance with the requirements of NH-R9-1.a cannot be achieved. 
 

3. Matters of discretion are restricted to: 

The relevant matters in NH-P9. 

Natural 
Hazards 

NH-R14 New buildings and structures and the Conversion of Existing Buildings that will 
contain Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities within the Inundation Areas of the 
Flood Hazard Overlay 

 

1. Activity Status: Restricted discretionary 
 
Where: 

a. When located within an Inundation Area of the Flood Hazard Overlay, 
the finished floor levels of the building for the potentially hazard sensitive 
activity is located above the 1% Flood Annual Exceedance Probability 
level, plus the height of the floor joists or the base of the concrete floor 
slab and an allowance for freeboard. 

Matters of discretion are restricted to: 

b. The relevant matters in NH-P9. 

 

2. Activity Status: Discretionary 

 
Where: 

Compliance with the requirements of NH-R14-1.a cannot be achieved. 

Oyster supports NH-P9.   



Natural 
Hazards 

NH-R15 New buildings and structures and the Conversion of Existing Buildings that will 
contain Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities within the Overland Flowpaths of 
the Flood Hazard Overlay 

 

1. Activity Status: Discretionary 
 
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

2. Activity Status: Non-complying  

Where:  

a. Compliance with the requirements of NH-R15.1.a cannot be achieved 

Oyster supports NH-R15.  

Coastal 
Environment 

Introduction Coastal Hazard Overlay Respective Hazard Ranking 

Tsunami – 1% AEP scenario inundation extent with 
1m Sea Level Rise  

 

 

High Existing Coastal Inundation Extent with 1% AEP 
storm tide and wave setup  

Tsunami – 0.2% AEP scenario inundation extent 
with 1m Sea Level Rise 

 

 

Medium Coastal Inundation Extent – 1.9m Relative Sea 
Level Rise and 1% AEP storm tide and wave set up  

Tsunami 0.1% AEP scenario inundation extent with 
1m Sea Level Rise 

Low 

 

Overlays:  

Oyster supports the clear, consistent 
hazard rankings of the Coastal Hazard 
Overlays. 

 

Oyster considers that the addition of clear 
definitions to the DDP, with AEP 
expressed as fractions (i.e., 1:100), will be 
easier for a plan user to understand. 

 

 

 

 

 



Coastal Hazard Overlays – Means the mapped extent within the District Plan of the 
following Coastal Hazards: 

 Tsunami Hazards, including the effects of climate change: 

o Low Tsunami Hazard (1:1000 year tsunami scenario including 1m sea 
level rise) 

o Medium Tsunami Hazard (1:500 year tsunami scenario including 1m sea 
level rise) 

o High Tsunami Hazard (1:100 year tsunami scenario including 1m sea 
level rise) 

 Coastal Inundation Hazard, including the effects of climate change and Vertical 
Land Movement 

o Medium Coastal inundation Hazard (1.9m Relative Sea Level Rise, 1% 
Annual Exceedance Probability storm tide and wave setup (the average 
raised elevation of sea level at the shore caused by breaking waves) 

o High Coastal Inundation Hazard – Coastal inundation from a 1% Annual 
Exceedance Probability storm tide and wave setup based on current 
sea levels. 

Coastal 
Environment 

CE-P14 Additions to existing buildings and structures in the Coastal Hazard Overlay are 
managed as follows: 

1. … 

2. Allow for additions to existing buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard 
Sensitive Activities and Hazard Sensitive Activities in the Low Coastal Hazard 
Overlay. 

3. Provide for additions to existing buildings for Potentially Hazard Sensitive 
Activities and Hazard Sensitive Activities in the Medium Coastal Hazard Overlay 
where: 

a. The addition is of limited size; or 

b. The addition enables the continued use of the existing building;  

c. The addition incorporates measures that reduce or do not increase the 
risk to people and buildings from the coastal hazard; and 

d. There is the ability to access safe evacuation routes for occupants of 
the building from the coastal hazard. 

Oyster supports CE-P14. 



4. Provide for additions to existing buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard 
Sensitive Activities in the High Coastal Hazard Overlay where:  

a. The addition enables the continued use of the existing building; 

b. The addition incorporates measures that reduce or do not increase the 
risk to people and buildings from the coastal hazard; and 

c. There is the ability to access safe evacuation routes for occupants of 
the building from the coastal hazard. 

… 

Coastal 
Environment 

CE-P15 New buildings and structures and the conversion of existing buildings in the 
Coastal Hazard Overlay are managed as follows: 

1. … 

2. … 

3. Provide for new buildings and the conversion of existing buildings that will 
contain Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities in the Medium Coastal Hazard 
Overlay where: 

a. The new building incorporates measures that minimise the risk to people 
and buildings from the coastal hazard; and 

b. There is the ability to access safe evacuation routes for occupants of 
the building from the coastal hazard. 

4. Only allow for new buildings and the conversion of existing buildings that will 
contain for Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities in the High Coastal Hazard 
Overlay where: 

a. The new building incorporates measures that reduce or do not increase 
the existing risk to people and buildings from the coastal hazard; and 

b. There is the ability to access safe evacuation routes for occupants of 
the building from the coastal hazard. 

5. … 

6. … 

Oyster supports CE-P15. 

Coastal 
Environment 

CE-R9 Additions to existing buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard Sensitive 
Activities in the Low Coastal Hazard Overlays 

1. Activity status: Permitted 

Oyster supports CE-R9.  



Coastal 
Environment  

CE-R10 Additions to existing buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard Sensitive 
Activities in the Medium Coastal Hazard Overlays 

 

1. Activity status: Permitted 

 

Where:  

a. The additions do not increase the building footprint by more than 100m2 

 

2. Activity status: Restricted Discretionary  

 

Where:  

a. Compliance with the requirements of CE-R10.1.a cannot be achieved.  

 

Matters of discretion are restricted to:  

1. Relevant matters in NH-P14 

Oyster supports the intention of CE-R10.  

 

Oyster considers that there has been an 
error in the reference to NH-P14.  This 
reference should be amended to ‘CE-P14’.  

 

 

Coastal 
Environment 

CE-R11 Additions to existing buildings and structures for Potentially Hazard Sensitive 
Activities in the High Coastal Hazard Overlays 

 

1. Activity status: Restricted discretionary  

 

Matters of discretion are restricted to:  

1. The relevant matters in NH-P14 

Oyster supports the intention of CE-R11.   

 

Oyster considers that there has been an 
error in the reference to NH-P14.  This 
reference should be amended to ‘CE-P14’ 

Coastal 
Environment 

CE-R16 New buildings or the conversion of existing buildings and structures for 
Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities in the Low Coastal Hazard Overlays 

 

1. Activity status: Permitted 

Oyster supports CE-R16.  



Coastal 
Environment 

CE-R18 New buildings or the conversion of existing buildings and structures for 
Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities in the Medium Coastal Hazard Overlays 

 

1. Activity status: Restricted discretionary 

 

Matters of discretion are restricted to:  

1. The relevant matters in NH-P15. 

Oyster supports the intention of CE-R18.  

 

Oyster considers that there has been an 
error in the reference to NH-P15.  This 
reference should be amended to ‘CE-P15’. 

Coastal 
Environment  

CE-R19 New buildings or the conversion of existing buildings and structures for 
Potentially Hazard Sensitive Activities in the High Coastal Hazard Overlays 

 

1. Activity status: Discretionary 

 

Oyster supports CE-R19.  
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Saritha Shetty

From: Secretary NZRLS <nzrls@actrix.co.nz>
Sent: Sunday, 10 December 2023 9:30 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Feedback on the Draft District Plan

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Kia ora 
 
I am writing on behalf of the New Zealand Railway and Locomotive Society Inc. We are the owners of the property at 
1A North Street, Petone, where we operate the Thomas McGavin Building which contains our archive and office.  
 
The Draft District Plan proposes to introduce a Mixed Use Zone which would include areas currently in a residential 
zone, including our property. We approve of this change as it will allow for a wider range of activities and 
developments in the area our property is situated in, including non‐residential activities.  
 
Thank you 
Bruce Taylor 
Secretary NZ Railway and Locomotive Society Inc. 
0272214874 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Friday, 8 December 2023 5:16 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Stokes Valley Hazard rating

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Sean

Hi,  
 
I understand homes in Stokes Valley have been given new hazard raƟngs.  
Could you please inform me of mine?  

  
 
Kind regards, 
 

 





From: ContactHCC
To:

Date: Tuesday, 12 December 2023 12:13:52 pm
Attachments: image001.png

Kia ora 
 
Thank you for your email.
 
We have forwarded this to our Distict plan team to arrange a reply. 
 
If you would like more information about Hutt City Council and our services, please ring our
Customer Contact Centre on 04 570 6666 or 0800 488 824.

Thank you,
Billie 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICES
 
Hutt City Council, 30 Laings Road, Hutt Central, Lower Hutt, Lower Hutt 5010 
P: 04 570 6666  M:   W: [www.huttcity.govt.nz]www.huttcity.govt.nz

                                                                    
 
 
 

From:  
Sent: Monday, December 11, 2023 9:48 PM
To: ContactHCC <contact@huttcity.govt.nz>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] 
 
Good evening,
 
I am writing regarding the letter which I received in relation to the property owned and
lived in by my wife and myself at 
 
I have a couple of interim questions:
 
Is the basis for considering the property a high hazard zone the presence of an historic
stream on boundary?
Are you aware there is no actual stream present, rather lawn?
All main dwellings (residence and garage) are situated on a part of the section considerably
higher than the lawn (ex stream area).  Has that been considered?
Has the neighboring property at 149 Whites Line East also received a similar notice.  As the



boundary line is half way across the 'paper' stream I will presume so?
 
Thanks,
 
Kind regards,
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 15 November 2023 4:21 pm
To: District Plan Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] High Hazard Zone letter

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Kia ora. We have received your letter identifying that our property  has been zoned in a high 
hazard area. 
 
We have looked at the maps on the council website and none of the identified hazards affect our property (or the 
ones nearby). 
 
We are concerned about the impact a misleading hazard zoning could have on our insurance and future sale of the 
property.  
 
Could someone please call me  to explain the reason our property is included in a high hazard 
zone? 
Thanks 

 





















From:
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] large Lot Residential Zone
Date: Saturday, 18 November 2023 12:41:17 pm

Good Afternoon
Would just like to put in a submission that I fully endorse the large lot residential
Zone proposal in Hine Road Wainuiomata as shown in your residential viewer.
A city needs to maintain spaces where residential areas back on to nature reserves to
offer the flora and fauna a border between residential activity and the sanctuary that
is offered to animal life by these reserves.
Also some folk still prefer the bigger sections and space. This option should be
maintained on the city fringes and other notable areas rather than forcing people of
this mind to seek property further out of the city borders. Creating more stress on the
infrastructure of rural areas, adding to driving times, traffic and maintenance on what
are often narrow roads which certainly were not made for large volumes of traffic

Thank you for the opportunity
regards
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Saritha Shetty

From: Nancy Gomez
Sent: Tuesday, 19 December 2023 9:14 am
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: Re Feedback on the Draft District Plan

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Sean

Hello District Plan team, 
 

1. Include Water Tanks in the Setbacks rule MRZ‐S5 (2.) and other similar rules 

2. Include Accessory buildings in the Flood Hazard overlay rules 

3. Change rule OSZ‐S5 to Each building and structures must not exceed 100m2 in the 

Open Space Zone 

4. Include alternaƟve sources in SUB‐S7 Rule (e.g. solar panels, wireless telecoms in 

rural areas) 

Thanks  
  
 
 
Nancy Gomez 
Senior Resource Consents Planner  

Hutt City Council, 30 Laings Road, Hutt Central, Lower Hutt, Lower Hutt 5010  
P:   M: 027 208 1190  W: www.huttcity.govt.nz 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Saturday, 9 December 2023 2:32 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Hutt city district plan - Benmore Crescent, Manor Park

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

I would like to lodge my object to the poten al rezoning of Benmore Crescent to a General Industrial Zone, as I feel 
zoning it as residen al wold be a much be er use of that space (especially given the demand for housing and its 
proximity to the highway and train sta on). 
 
 
Cheers, 
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Saritha Shetty

From:
Sent: Wednesday, 7 February 2024 3:47 pm
To: District Plan Review Team
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Objection to the Proposed Rezoning and Resource Consent Applications for 30 

Benmore Crescent, Manor Park
Attachments: 30 Benmore Crescent Zoning Change and RC Application Edited.docx

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Categories: Steve

Regards 
Murray Carpenter 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 
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30 Benmore Crescent, Manor Park:  Objections to Proposed District 

Plan Change Zoning and the Proposed Refuse Transfer Station –            

6th February 2024 
 

General Comments: 

The proposed District Plan Zoning change for 30 Benmore Crescent, from its current 

General Rural status to Industrial, appears to be an attempt by Hutt City Council to 

facilitate the developers plans to construct and operate a Waste Transfer Station on 

this site.  This ignores the suitability of the site for this activity and is a betrayal of the 

local residents who thought originally, they were buying into a quiet residential 

suburb, bordered by rural, open space and sport & recreational zones. 

The Manor Park area previously provided housing for New Zealand Electricity and 

Ministry of Works department employees in the 1950’s to about the 1970’s.  With the 

corporatisation of these two government departments in the 1980’s this area was 

sold off and subsequentially developed mainly for residential housing.  Mary Huse 

Grove, which is close to 30 Benmore Crescent and is only separated by the railway 

line, consists of about 50 modern homes built 20 to 25 years ago. The remaining 

eastern part of Manor Park, consists of about 75 properties of mainly older homes, 

except for the recent development of the old primary school site, where new homes 

have been built. The present zoning, which doesn’t change in the draft District Plan, 

allows for medium and high-density housing, up to 3 stories high in Manor Park. This 

allows for further residential housing development, which is a natural progression 

because of the suburbs good transport links, with good connections to SH 2 and SH 

58, via the Manor Park interchange, and the adjacent Hutt Valley-Wellington rail line, 

with its safe pedestrian links to the Manor Park Railway Station. The only other 

significant development in Manor Park, apart from access to the Manor Park Golf 

Sanctuary off the end of Golf Road, is the Manor Park Private Hospital located 

approximately 300m from the Benmore Crescent site.  

The Manor Park Golf Club, which has approximately 750 members, has carried out 

developments over recent years to provide a sanctuary for wild life while protecting 

and enhancing the environment.  This includes carrying out an active programme to 

eliminate rodents.  The Club is an internationally recognised sanctuary with an 

environmental certification from Audubon International, New York. The Audubon 

International’s Co-operative Sanctuary Program, strives to achieve compatibility of 

both golfers needs and the environment in a harmonious and complimentary way.  

The course is set partly in native bush and wetlands and is home to over 20 different 
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bird species.  The golf course extends south and east of Mary Huse Grove, coming 

within 200m of the Benmore Crescent proposed Waste Transfer site. 

Recently Wellington Regional Council have constructed a cycle walking track along 

the edge of the Manor Park Golf Sanctuary, close to the railway line, which will soon 

link up to the existing walking/cycleway on the eastern side of the Hutt River, via a 

new footbridge. This bridge will also carry a new replacement watermain, that carries 

the bulk of Wellingtons water from the Kaitoke catchment.  It is assumed that the 

cycle/pedestrian track, which ends near the entrance to the Manor Park Golf course, 

will eventually be extended to Melling, to complete a route on both sides of the river 

from Petone. Currently there is a pedestrian/cycle route on top of the stop bank near 

Mary Huse Grove, which passes within 150m of the Benmore Crescent site. 

There have never been an Industrial zone at Manor Park.  It is basically a residential 

suburb. This site is completely unsuitable for a Waste Transfer Station.  Any change of 

the zoning at 30 Benmore Crescent to an Industrial Zone to make this facility possible, 

is completely inappropriate.  It is a betrayal of the local residents, who decided to 

build or buy in Manor Park, but have now been completely blindsided by the 

proposal to change the land use from Rural to Industrial.  It will downgrade their 

property values. 

The proposal is also against the aims of the Manor Park Golf Sanctuary to enhance 

the environment and bird life in the area and is not compatible with the WRC’s 

development of the pedestrian and cycle trials in the vicinity.  A Waste Transfer 

Station is likely to increase the rodent population in the area, which is completely 

against what the Manor Park Golf Sanctuary is trying to achieve.  Any increase in the 

rodent population could possibly have an effect on Keith George Memorial Park and 

the Silverstream Scenic Reserve, two important reserves, within about 2 km of the 

Benmore Crescent site.  

Odour and noise issues are sure to occur, being close to a residential area, a private 

hospital and the Manor Park Golf Club.  

 

Proposed Zoning Change from Rural to Industrial: 

This zoning change proposal appears to be driven by the proposed Waste Transfer 

Station, as it is unlikely that a such a facility could get the necessary approvals under 

the current General Rural zoning. The Industrial zoning would allow developments, 

not only the Waste Transfer Station, but other operations that are unsuitable in this 

dominantly residential suburb.   

The closest Mary Huse Grove residential properties, on the other side of the railway 

line, are as close as 45 m from this proposed development. Noise, odour and traffic 
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will be significant issues if this area is rezoned Industrial, and will be major if a Waste 

Transfer Station operates from this site. 

 

Lodged Resource Consents for Proposed Waste Transfer Station: 

The 2 Resource Consents for the 30 Benmore Crescent site, RC230019 Waste Transfer 

Station and RC230018 Roading and Infrastructure, have been lodged with HCC.  The 

developer (Rosco’s Industrial) has formed an agreement with the owners of the land, 

Ngati Toa Rangatira, to develop a Waste Transfer Station facility for Waste 

Management Ltd, to replace their current facility at Seaview.  The documents state 

that it will provide regional infrastructure for the repair and recovery of products and 

management of waste, while Te Runangu considers the proposed recovery park will 

be beneficial for encouraging substantial management of resources and achieve 

waste management goals, offering repair and material recovery.  A retail shop selling 

goods recovered from waste, is to be part of the development. All fine goals but to 

construct such a facility on the edge of a residential area is completely incompatible 

with the existing land use and environment. 

A number of significant problems with this proposal are: 

1) Noise Levels: 

The Resource Consent application states that the Waste Transfer Station will be open 

from 6am to 7 pm, 7 days a week for commercial and private use plus municipal 

collections. However, between 5 am and 6 am, 3 trucks may leave the site and 

between 6am and 7 am on weekdays, 12 trucks are expected to leave the site.  In 

addition, between 2 am and 5 am on weekdays there may be up to 5 truck 

movements.  There is expected to be with some truck movements after 7 pm. These 

constant truck movements and start-ups, for possibly up to 20 hours a day, will result 

in considerable noise issues for adjacent residents. The properties in Mary Huse 

Grove are as close as 45m to this noise source! 

The operation of the plant requires the truck haulage door into the transfer building 

to close on entry and exit of every truck. This operation is likely to be a significant 

constant noise generator.  Another requirement is that the transport ready bins will 

be parked inside overnight, which is likely to result in considerable noise during this 

operation. 

These noise sources, some of it occurring outside of the opening hours of the Waste 

Transfer Station between 6 am and 7 pm, are likely to create a major noise issue for 

local residents and annoyance to golfers. It will not be at a constant noise level but a 

lot of random banging and clanking with vehicle start-ups and vehicle movement, 

during a large part of the day, including early morning and in the evening.  
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2) Odour Levels: 

The document states that Waste Management shall ensure there is no offensive or 

objectionable odour beyond the property boundaries. Even with the mist sprays in 

the transfer station and odour suppressants on hand, it is difficult to see how this will 

always be achieved. The documents claim that the weighbridge operator will be 

responsible to “assess odour from loads entering the site and reject any excessively 

odorous waste upon arrival at the weighbridge.”  It is not clear what skills and time 

the operator has to make this assessment and whether the operator(s) will always 

get it right, between the hours of 7 am and 6pm, 7 days a week! 

 Recent media publicity related to residents in the Hutt Valley and Christchurch, being 

affected by escaping odour smells from sites, demonstrates the problem and the 

adverse public reaction that follows.  Any odour from the Waste Transfer Station that 

escapes from the site will have significant implications for the residents in Mary Huse 

Grove, the Private Hospital and the Manor Park Golf Club members, plus users of the 

cycle/pedestrian trail. 

3) Traffic Issues: 

(a) The predicted traffic volumes on the Manor Park connection to the SH 2 

interchange turning in and out of Benmore Crescent is forecast to be 2900 

vehicles per day, an expected to increase 6 to 10 fold over current flows 

Although the interchange itself should cope with the additional traffic, even 

with the future closure of Hebden Crescent off SH 2, which is predicted to 

further increase traffic on the interchange by about 400 to 500 vehicles per 

day, the section from the interchange roundabout to the rail level crossing on 

Manor Park, a distance of approximately 100 m to 120 m, is the main problem 

area.  

 The predicted traffic flows show that the turning vehicles in and out of 

Benmore Crescent will far exceed the vehicles travelling along Manor Park 

Road. This will increase the traffic conflict in a vulnerable area adjacent to the 

rail level crossing and the overall accident risk.  

 

(b) The dominant turn for traffic accessing the Waste Transfer Station is the exit 

from the interchange, down a grade in the order of 6%, through a tight left-

hand curve with a 30m radius, before making an even tighter turn into 

Benmore Crescent. Vehicles departing the site do the reverse, climbing up the 

steep grade to the interchange.  Although the construction drawings 

submitted include turning paths for a 17.9m semi-trailer making these turns, 

plus changes to the lane widths to accommodate these turning paths, it does 
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assume that these turning vehicles will stick to these paths and lane lines.  

However, driver behaviour varies and it is likely that the turning vehicles will 

often straddle these lanes.  What is more challenging is that the turning 

vehicles will be braking on the downhill grade as they make the turning 

manoeuvres, especially if they are required to give way or stop for 

approaching vehicles from Manor Park, or vehicles queued in the right turn 

lane or queued back from the rail crossing.  The tight horizontal curves and 

varying cross-falls will add to the problem. The stopping sight distance for 

vehicles exiting the interchange roundabout as they approach the Benmore 

Crescent intersection, is very restrictive, which is an added risk factor.  This is 

made worse if there is a queue because the rail barriers are down.  The steep 

downhill grade will lengthen the normal braking stopping distance, which 

currently looks inadequate.  Although there is a separate left-hand lane for 

traffic heading to Manor Park across the level crossing, this is likely to be 

blocked if more than one semi-trailer is waiting to turn right into the Waste 

Transfer Station facility.   

I note in the Land Use Consent application, it states that the “level crossing 

and proposed upgrade do not fully comply within the level crossing risk 

assessment guidelines!” 

 

(c) Semi-trailers and trucks are likely to cause pavement stress and damage 

because of the tight manoeuvres and heavy braking required on the downhill 

grade approaching the Manor Park Road/ Benmore Crescent intersection. 

Braking on the downhill grade, because of queued or stopped vehicles for 

approaching traffic, especially if the pavement is wet or icy, has the potential 

for traffic accidents. 

 

 

Note:  The Transport Agency was previously under pressure during the design of the 

Manor Park interchange to eliminate the rail level crossing on Manor Park 

Road. The logical location of such a link, with a bridge over the rail, would be 

to come off the roundabout and align the link through the vacant land by the 

Private Hospital entrance, linking into Manor Park Road. Pressure is likely to 

grow for the elimination of the rail crossing as residential growth continues in 

Manor Park, as envisaged by the draft District Plan, and will grow more intense 

if there unfortunately is a serious or fatal accident at the existing rail level 

crossing.  

Allowance should be made for this future modified access to Manor Park to 

eliminate the rail level crossing. However, it is unlikely that a direct link off this 
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modified access, across to Benmore Crescent, can be achieved because of 

level and geometric constraints, therefore requiring this traffic to continue 

down on the modified access to Manor Park Road, turning right and crossing 

over the level crossing before entering Benmore Crescent. This defeats the 

purpose of eliminating the rail level crossing.  It appears to me that any change 

in zoning from Rural to Industrial of the Benmore Crescent site, which will 

significantly increase traffic volumes, will in turn probably stop any future 

proposal to eliminate the existing rail level crossing.   

 

Conclusion 

The proposed change in the HCC Draft District Plan for 30 Benmore Street to be 

rezoned Industrial from the current Rural zone is inappropriate, because of the 

significant effects on this quiet residential suburb, as spelt out above. The change 

would also have a significant effect on residential property values.  It is also likely to 

prevent any future proposal to eliminate the rail level crossing on Manor Park Road. 

The proposed Waste Transfer Station at 30 Benmore Crescent is an inappropriate site 

for such a facility, regardless of the land zoning. It is not compatible with the 

environment of the Manor Park suburb, a betrayal of the residents of Manor Park 

who bought or built in good faith in this quiet suburban peaceful suburb, and is at 

odds the local bicycle/pedestrian trails being developed in the area. It is not 

compatible with the aim of the Manor Park Golf Sanctuary, in its efforts to eliminate 

pests and improve the environment and wet lands within the course. There are 

significant noise issues with the proposed development and the potential for odour 

and rodent problems to arise.  There will be big increase in traffic between the 

interchange and Benmore Crescent, with a dominance of heavy vehicles, including 

semi-trailers.  There will be a high right turn movement into Benmore Crescent across 

traffic approaching from Manor Park.  This occurs on a steep section of road, with 

tight horizontal reverse curves, queueing traffic, limited sight lines, all adjacent to a 

busy railway line.  This all has the potential to become a significant accident site.  

The change in zoning to 30 Benmore Crescent from Rural to Industrial should not 

proceed. The Resource Consent application to develop a Waste Transfer Station on 

this site should be rejected or as a minimum be publicly notified. 

 

 

 

 




